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OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu
light, medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose
vehicles and diesel and petrol engines. All of the production facilities
of the Group are located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and substantially all the sales of the Group are also made
in the PRC. The Group had export sales to Japan during the year,
which accounted for approximately 1.2% of the Group's turnover for
the year.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group had 2,812 employees as at 31 December 2012.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Qingling Motors Co.
Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2012 for your review.

2012 RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company sold 60,084
vehicles, a decrease of 21% over the 75,821 vehicles sold last
year. Turnover reached RMBG6.19 billion, a decrease of 24% over
RMB8.15 billion as recorded last year. Profit after tax was RMB296
million, a decrease of 17% over RMB356 million as recorded last
year.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

In 2012, the slowing down of the Chinese economy impacted
relatively heavily on the commercial vehicle industry. Sales dropped
for 2 years consecutively. However, thanks to the unrelenting hard
work of the entire staff, the Company consolidated a foothold
in adverse operation environment and endeavored to establish a
growth trend; as well as cultivated a new competitive edge for the
mid to late 12th Five-Year Plan Period.
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Opening ceremony of the training program for the
staff with high professional qualification

in respect of two new companies (one for product

development company and one for parts and

components company)
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Launching high quality and middle price products
in emerging markets such as counties and towns to
explore new market potential. Based on national economy
and changes in market demands, the Company set and
implemented updated specific sales strategies in a timely
manner. In 2012, the Company successfully developed 94
new distributors in counties and towns, rejuvenated a number
of existing distributors, and developed many new distributors
for vehicles that related to food and the livelihood of our
citizens, such as vehicles for transportation of medicine, dairy
products, seafood and fresh fruits etc. Qingling’'s high-quality
and middle-priced vehicles secured new markets in counties
and towns that were less affected by the macro-economy and
recorded an increase in sales in the 4th quarter regardless of
industry downturn in the 1st and 2nd quarters and the impact
of unusual difficulties in the 3rd quarter.

Continued to implement in-depth basic management and
carry out team building for our cadres and workers. Despite
a temporary slow-down in the growth of production as well
as sales turnover in 2012, the Company considered this as a
golden opportunity to speed up the enhancement of integrated
enterprise competitiveness. The Company therefore made
great efforts in strengthening the implementation of in-depth
basic management, carrying out team building for our cadres
and workers, setting up scientific management framework,
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Development of new products related to food and
the livelihood of our citizens

implementing 5S management system throughout the factory
area, initiating professional management in equipment, quality,
molds and production organization, putting more emphases on the
enhancement of leadership style and ability of senior management,
providing professional training to technicians so that they can put it
into practice in fast moving production process, providing training to
senior technicians in terms of theory and practice, and enhancing the
basic management of the enterprise and the quality of the team in
order to reach new standard.

Adhering to the concept of technology advancement, so
as to effectively develop and enhance various series of
finished vehicles, modified vehicles and engines emission.
In order to satisfy demand for customers related to food and
the livelihood of our citizens, the Company developed and
put into production 600P/700P access cab model; to satisfy
domestic demand for load carrying vehicles, 700P pneumatic
model was developed making use of the exiting technical
platform of 700P, FTR model; to satisfy the special demand
of county and town customers, “economical model 100P"
was developed and produced; meanwhile, the Company also
developed modified vehicles such as vehicles for mobile book
store, wingspan trucks, vehicles for transporting chicks, stake
trucks and refrigerator/thermal cars etc. and developed 600P
national IV model equipped with 4K national IV engines, which
strengthened our efforts in exploring the domestic market.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

4. Further enhanced the “open-up” policy and made
substantial achievements in projects of heavy-duty
vehicles and engines for heavy-duty vehicles. Together
with Isuzu, the Company formed a new joint venture company
for the development of heavy-duty vehicles. The Company’s
parent company — Qingling Group, formed a joint venture
company with Isuzu for heavy-duty engine spare parts,
which undertook to manufacture key engine spare parts for
heavy-duty vehicles domestically and had the functions of
procurement and export. Outside party continued to send its
main staff responsible for development, quality, equipment,
purchasing and logistics to Qingling, with over 1,000 staff
sent throughout the year, to jointly and strongly promote the
practical work of product development, domestic production
and marketing, and significant progresses were achieved in
various aspects.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTUS

The year 2013 is a year of adjustment as a result of the global
financial crisis and European debt crisis. Domestically, current
market situation will remain the same for a certain period of
time. There will hardly be any material changes in the business
environment of commercial vehicles and competition among various
companies will become more severe. Regardless of the complicated
environment of last year, the Company consolidated a foothold
in adverse operation environment and endeavored to establish
a growth trend. We are more determined to strike on and have
confidence in making rapid advancement.

Our focuses in 2013 are as follows:

1. Focusing on the key problems in relation to product
specifications, sales network and after sales services, the
Company will put extra efforts to improve. The Company will
expand the market share of our products in emerging county
and town markets.

2. Continues to implement in-depth basic management.
Professional management on areas such as equipment,
quality, production organization and 5S are far from
satisfactory, we need to keep working on them so as to
enhance efficiency, quality assurance and improvement in
environment.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Continues to work seriously on team building for cadres and
workers. Team building for cadres and workers is a perpetual
topic for enterprise. It is necessary to focus on the exiting
weaknesses of senior management and technicians and
implement speedy remedial actions so as to enhance the most
important soft power of the enterprise.

Determined to explore new markets through technology
advancement. Enhance the integrated competitiveness of the
enterprise. Following regulations and market demands, the
Company puts into bulk production, offers 700P pneumatic
and 600P national IV models, and continues to develop
finished vehicles and modified vehicles.

Chinese and foreign partners jointly speed up the progress of
the projects for heavy-duty vehicles and engines for heavy-
duty vehicles. Continues to response to market demands for
the development, trial production, testing, and registration
of various specifications of heavy-duty vehicles. Ensures
that internally produced and outside purchased spare part
are domestically produced and quality, costing and progress
are achieved simultaneously thus cultivating a brand new
competitiveness for the mid to late 12th Five-Year Plan Period.

WU Yun
Chairman

21 March 2013
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Yun, aged 59, has been an executive Director since 28
April 1994. Mr. WU is also the chairman of the Company and the
Chairman of the nomination committee and the chairman and
general manager of Qingling Motors (Group) Company Limited
("Qingling Group”). Mr. WU is a senior economist, has been
in the motor vehicle production industry for over 32 years and
has extensive experience in management and finance. He is a
representative of Chongging National People's Congress. Mr.
WU graduated from Hunan University, specialising in automobile
studies.

Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI, aged 70, has been an executive
Director and the vice chairman of the Company since 6 June 2012.
Mr. TSUTSUMI graduated from the Department of Mechanical
Engineering of Faculty of Engineering of Kagoshima University. He
joined Isuzu Motors Co. Ltd (“Isuzu”) from April 1968 and has nearly
44 years of experience in production, manufacturing and technical
management of Isuzu Motors Vehicles. Mr. TSUTSUMI was an
executive Director from 14 June 2007 to 16 June 2009.

Mr. GAO Jianmin, aged 53, has been an executive Director
since 28 April 1994. Mr. GAO is currently an executive director
and managing director of Silver Grant International Industries
Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”, Stock Code: 171) and an executive director of
Jiangxi Copper Company Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 358). Mr. GAO has more than 26 years of experience
in finance, industrial investment and development. He holds a
Bachelor degree in engineering from Qinghua University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Makoto TANAKA, aged 61, has been an executive Director
since 17 June 2008. Mr. TANAKA is also the general manager of the
Company. Mr. TANAKA graduated from Nihon University. He joined
Isuzu in April 1975. He served in different positions in Isuzu from
December 1994 to April 2005, including supervisor of assembly
team of Large Size Automobiles Technology Department, director
of production coordination department of production technology
planning office and director of PT public works department. He was
president of Isuzu Engine Manufacturing (Thailand) Co. Ltd. during
the period from May 2005 to April 2007. He returned to Isuzu in
April 2007 and served as PT production executive director.

Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA, aged 64, has been an executive Director
since 2 March 2011. Mr. TSUKIOKA graduated from Waseda
University in Japan. Mr. TSUKIOKA joined Isuzu in April 1972 and
from November 1998 until November 2002, he held the positions
in Isuzu as team member of the production planning department,
team member of the merchandise planning department, head
of the 1st, 3rd and 5th divisions of the commercial vehicles
merchandise planning department, officer of the commercial
vehicles merchandise planning department and officer of the
vehicles development office. From June 2003 until February 2004,
Mr. TSUKIOKA held the post as executive director of Isuzu's
technology development planning department and design center.
From April 2005 until March 2006, he served as the Area Operations
Executive of the North America. From April 2006 until the present,
Mr. TSUKIOKA has been the executive vice president and director
of Isuzu.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LIU Guangming, aged 59, has been an executive Director since
28 April 1994. Mr. LIU is a deputy general manager of the Company,
a chairman of a member of the Group as well as deputy chairman
and deputy general manager of Qingling Group. He is also a member
of the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. LIU is a senior
economist and the vice chairman of the Chongging Management
Association and has over 31 years of experience in corporate
management and personnel management. He studied in universities
in Japan, the United States and Chongging and was previously a
division head, deputy secretary of the Party Committee and deputy
factory manager and secretary of the Party Committee of Qingling
Group.

Mr. PAN Yong, aged 62, has been an executive Director since 28
April 1994. Mr. PAN is a deputy general manager of the Company,
a chairman of a few members of the Group as well as a director
and deputy general manager of Qingling Group. He is a senior
economist, and has more than 32 years of experience in corporate
management and sales of Qingling Group. Mr. PAN graduated from
Hunan University, specialising in automobile studies.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LONG Tao, aged 61, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 28 April 1994. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. LONG graduated from Research
Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance, majoring in
accounting. Mr. LONG holds a master’s degree in economics. He
had served at Accountancy Division of Central University of Finance
and Economics, and New York office of KPMG Peat Marwick. Mr.
LONG had acted as a member of Securities Issue and Approval
Committee of China Securities Regulatory Commission and
member of Chinese accounting expert panel for China-Hong Kong
Securities Team. Mr. LONG is currently an associate professor
of the Accountancy Division of Central University of Finance
and Economics and the Chairman of Beijing Haiwen Investment
Consultants Inc.. Mr. LONG has extensive knowledge and
experience in corporate finance, accounting, audit, assets appraisal,
restructuring of enterprise and listing. Mr. LONG also serves as the
independent non-executive director of China Asset Management
Co., Ltd and Beijing North Star Company Limited (listed on the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 588). Mr. LONG resigned as an independent
director of Asialnfo Holdings Inc. (listed on NASDAQ, NASDAQ:
ASIA) on 1 July 2010.

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, aged 62, has been an independent non-
executive Director since 28 April 1994. He is also the chairman
of the audit committee and the remuneration committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. SONG
is general manager of Chongging Ping Zheng Law Office, a member
of the China Economic Law Association and the China Lawyers
Association, and a council member of the Chongging Lawyers
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Association, a vice chairman of the Foreign Affairs Committee of
Chongging Lawyers Association and a member of the Chongaging
Legal Academy. Mr. SONG has been a lawyer and notary for 27
years. Mr. SONG graduated from South West Institute of Political
Science and Law and also studied international law in the China
University of Political Science and Law and foreign economic law at
Shenzhen University. He was formerly vice chairman of Chongging
Notary Office and vice chairman of Chongging Foreign Law Office.

Mr. XU Bingjin, aged 74, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 22 September 2004. He is also a member of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. XU is the president of China Europe
Economic Association for Technical and Economic Cooperation,
vice president of the World Trade Organization Institute, part-
time professor of Shanghai Foreign Trade College and senior
consultant of Northeastern University. He holds a Bachelor Degree
in Engineering Economics from Jilin Industrial University and is a
senior engineer. Mr. XU has been a former assistant to the minister
of the Ministry of China Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation,
deputy chief of the Delegation of China Entry to GATT and the
Delegation of China Entry to WTO. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Brilliance China Automotive Holdings
Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1114).

Mr. LIU Tianni, aged 49, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 31 May 2011. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. LIU is currently the founder and
chairman of Wonderful Sky Financial Group Limited, an executive
director of Silver Grant International Industries Limited (listed on
the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 171) and the managing director
of Sure Spread Company Limited. He is also an independent
nonexecutive director of Chongging Iron & Steel Company Limited
(listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1053). Mr. LIU
graduated from Beijing Normal University with a master degree
in science. He has over 17 years of experience in finance, trade
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

businesses and corporate administration. In October 2008, Mr.
LIU was awarded “Outstanding Young Chinese Entrepreneur of
the World” by Asiaweek, as an acknowledgement of his excellent
corporate management and prominent business strategies.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. MIN Qing, aged 45, has been the Supervisor representing
the Shareholders since 15 June 2006 and is also the Chairman
of the Supervisory Committee. Ms. MIN is the deputy secretary
of the Party Committee and the Chairman of the Workers Union
of Qingling Group, and has 24 years of experience in corporate
management. Ms. MIN graduated from Chongging Communication
College in Mechanical Engineering in 1988 and had undergraduate
education. She also studied corporate management in Japan.

Ms. ZHOU Hong, aged 61, has been a Supervisor representing
the Shareholders since 11 June 1997. Ms. ZHOU is the deputy
secretary of the Communist Party Discipline Commission of the
Company and a political specialist. She has 37 years of experience
in management. Ms. ZHOU graduated from Sichuan Party Cadre
Distant Learning Institute in 1988, specializing in economic
management.

Mr. LEI Bin, aged 38, has been a Supervisor representing the staff
and workers since 6 June 2012. Mr. LEl graduated from Hunan
University, specializing in international finance, and obtained the
bachelor degree in economics. He joined the Company from 7 July
1997 until the present. Mr. LElI was served as a vice minister of
comprehensive plan. He is the minister of the financial department
of Qingling Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

PRC COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WU Nianging, aged 61, is the Chief Accountant and the
Company Secretary based in China of the Company, assistant to the
General Manager, Deputy Chief Accountant of Qingling Group. Mr.
WU is a Senior Economist. Mr. WU graduated from China Television
University, specialising in industrial management. He has over 37
years of experience in accounting and financial management, and
has been the Deputy Head of Accounting Department of Qingling
Group.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’'S REPORT

Dear Shareholders:

Since the establishment of the Supervisory Committee, each
member has been performing his duty in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association with a view of protecting the
interests of shareholders and the Company. We have attended
the board meetings and have given our opinions regarding the
operations, technological reform and development of the Company
during board meetings. We have also monitored the guiding
ideology of the management and considered whether the decisions
made by the management were in compliance with state laws and
whether they were appropriate for the development of the Company
and were in the interests of shareholders.

According to its power, the Supervisory Committee has reviewed
evidence of the Company’s accounts, books, reports and other
accounting information from time to time. In our opinion, the
financial statements have been properly prepared while the
accounting principles and the method of financial management
adopted are in compliance with relevant rules and regulations.

We have carefully examined the financial statements, the
Directors’ Report and the proposal for appropriation of profit to
be presented before the forthcoming annual general meeting by
the Board of Directors. In our opinion, the chairman of the board,
directors, managers and senior management have not engaged
in any malpractices which would be prejudicial to the interests of
shareholders and employees of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance as
well as the economic results of the Company, and we are confident
about the future development of the Company.

MIN Qing
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Chongging, the PRC
21 March 2013
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board is pleased to present its annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu
light, medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose
vehicles and diesel and petrol engines. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries, an associate and jointly controlled entities are set out
in notes 35, 19 and 20 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 55. The directors recommend the payment of a
final dividend of RMBO0.10 per share to the shareholders on the
register of members on 18 June 2013, amounting to approximately
RMB248,227,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB165,410,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion of its
production facilities.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property,
plant and equipment and investment properties of the Group are set
out in note 15 and note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

According to the Company's Articles of Association, the amount of
profit available for distribution shall be deemed to be the amount
of profit determined in accordance with the relevant accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable to companies
established in the PRC (“PRC GAAP"). The Company’'s profit
available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2012
was the retained profit of approximately RMB1,534,956,000 (2011:
approximately RMB1,570,960,000).

The profit of the Company for a financial year shall be applied in

accordance with the following order:

() making up losses;

(i) allocation to statutory surplus reserve fund;

(iii)  if there are preference shares, payment of dividends in respect
of preference shares;

(iv) allocation to discretionary surplus reserve fund; and

(v)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.

The detailed proportion of distribution in respect of items (ii) to (v)
above for any financial year shall be formulated by the Board in
accordance with the operational conditions of the Company and its
development requirements and shall be submitted to shareholders’
general meeting for approval.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

WU Yun (Chairman)
Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 6 June 2012)

GAO Jianmin

Makoto TANAKA (General Manager)
Ryozo TSUKIOKA

LIU Guangming

PAN Yong

YUE Huagqgiang (resigned on 6 June 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

LONG Tao
SONG Xiaojiang
XU Bingjin
LIU Tianni

Supervisors:
MIN Qing
ZHOU Hong

ZHANG Wanijin (resigned on 6 June 2012)

LEI Bin (appointed on 6 June 2012)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

All the Directors other than Mr. YUE Huagiang were re-elected and
appointed as Directors to hold office from the date of the annual
general meeting for 2012 to the date of the annual general meeting
for 2015.

All the Supervisors other than Mr. ZHANG Wanjin were re-elected
and appointed as Supervisors to hold office from the date of the
annual general meeting for 2012 to the date of the annual general
meeting for 2015.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the Directors that had been re-elected and appointed had
renewed or entered into service contracts and appointment letters
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 6 June
2012.

All the Supervisors that had been re-elected and appointed had
renewed or entered into appointment letters with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 6 June 2012.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has a service contract with
the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors as regards to their independence
to the Company and considers that each of the independent non-
executive directors is independent to the Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors or the Supervisors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or Supervisor had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION

The details of Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
remuneration are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements. All of five highest individuals of the Company for both
years were Directors.

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, there were 134 Shareholders recorded in
the register of shareholders of the Company and the Shareholders
other than a Director, Supervisor or chief executive of the Company,
having an interest or short positions in 5% or more of the relevant
class of the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests in the shares and short positions required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares of the Company:

EREBER

REBDL fhaRA

Percentage of BOk

FRRHEE the relevant Percentage of

Number of 513 class of entire

shares held  Capacity share capital share capital

1,243,616403f%  E#@AEAA 100.00% 50.10%

Domestic shares  1,243,616,403 shares  Beneficial 100.00% 50.10%
owner

496,453,654k  EmBEAA 40.08% 20.00%

496,453,654 shares  Beneficial 40.08% 20.00%
(H shares) owner

84,927,000f  ®ELE 6.86% 3.42%

H shares 84,927,000 shares  Investment 6.86% 3.42%

manager

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2012.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or Supervisors had any
interest in any business which compete or may compete with the
business of the Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee (composed of one executive Director
and four independent non-executive Directors) on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the executive Directors and Senior Management
and the emoluments of the independent non-executive Directors
are decided and recommended to the Board respectively by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had connected transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries, Isuzu, Qingling Isuzu
(Chongging) Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd (“Qingling Isuzu
Sales”), a jointly controlled entity formed and jointly controlled by
the Company and Isuzu, and Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co.,
Ltd. ("Qingling Isuzu Engine”), a jointly controlled entity formed and
jointly controlled by the Company and Isuzu. Qingling Group and
Isuzu held 50.10% and 20.00% of the issued share capital of the
Company respectively as at 31 December 2012. Details of these
transactions are as follows:

(a)  Significant connected transactions with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries:

At the time of reorganisation, the Group entered into a service
agreement with Qingling Group in relation to the sales of parts
and raw materials for the manufacture of automobile parts by
Qingling Group. In addition, the Group had also entered into a
parts supply agreement with Qingling Group whereby Qingling
Group agreed to provide the Group with certain parts and
components produced by Qingling Group which are required
in the production processes of the Group. On 23 December
2010, the Group entered into new parts supply agreements
with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries respectively, which
were approved by the Company’s general meeting held on 2
March 2011.

On 23 December 2010, the Company also entered into a
warehouse leasing agreement with Qingling Group whereby
the Company agreed to lease warehouses from Qingling
Group for a period of three years.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)

Significant connected transactions with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

Details of connected transactions with Qingling Group during
the year are set out in note 32(i)(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the vyear, the Company had certain connected
transactions with some of the sino-foreign joint venture
companies which are subsidiaries of Qingling Group. These
companies include EEEREERR AR, EEERBEEGR
AR, EEERERABRAG, EEERBEERAERALR, =
EERZHARAR and BEEERBERAEMRAF. Detals of
these transactions are set out in note 32(i)(b) to 32(i)(g) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Significant connected transactions with Isuzu:

On 23 December 2010, the Company has renewed an
automobile parts and components supply agreement with
Isuzu whereby Isuzu agreed to provide the Company with
certain automobile parts and components produced by Isuzu
and which are required in the production processes of the
Group. This agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders by poll on 2 March 2011.

On 23 December 2010, the Company has also renewed an
accessory sets and other automobile parts and components
supply agreement with Isuzu whereby the Company agreed to
provide Isuzu with certain accessory sets and other automobile
parts and components produced by the Company and which
are required in the production processes of Isuzu. This
agreement was approved by the independent shareholders by
poll on 2 March 2011.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(b)

Significant connected transactions with Isuzu: (Cont'd)

During the year, the Company had certain connected
transactions with Isuzu of royalty fee for the transfer of
technology and provision of technical know-how and the
permission to use the trademark of Isuzu and the emblem
by Isuzu to the Company for the production and in the sales
of 100P-N/R series light vehicles, 140 TF/UC series vehicles,
F series Chassis, 700P series vehicles and related parts and
components. In addition, the Company purchased software of

production management system from Isuzu during the year.

Details of connected transactions with Isuzu during the
year are set out in note 32(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Significant connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine:

Since November 2007, connected transactions have been
carried out between the Company and the Qingling Isuzu
Engine in respect of (i) the ongoing supply transactions namely
the supply of parts of engines and raw materials to and the
purchase of engines and their parts from Qingling Isuzu
Engine, (i) the ongoing consolidated services namely the
provision of consolidated services to Qingling Isuzu Engine,
(iii) the ongoing equipment lease namely the rental of leased
equipment to Qingling Isuzu Engine, and (iv) the ongoing
factory lease namely the lease of the leased land and factory
premises to Qingling Isuzu Engine.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(c)

The

Significant connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine:
(Cont'd)

On 23 December 2010, the Company entered into following
agreements with Qingling the Supply
(2) the Consolidated Services Agreement; (3)

Isuzu Engine: (1)
Agreement;
the Equipment Lease Agreement; and (4) the Factory Lease
Agreement. All these agreements were approved by the
independent shareholders by poll on 2 March 2011.

Details of connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine
during the year are set out in note 32(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Significant connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu Sales:

On 23 December 2010, the Company entered into following
agreements with Qingling Isuzu Sales: (1) the Pre-leasing
Agreement; (2) the Consolidated Service Agreement whereby
the Company agreed to provide Qingling Isuzu Sales with: (i)
transportation services; (ii) equipment repair and maintenance
services; (iii) medical and hygiene services; and (iv) the three

Warranties and etc.

Details of connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu Sales
during the year are set out in note 32(iv) to the consolidated
financial statements.

directors confirm that the

independent non-executive

transactions have been entered into by the Company in the ordinary
course of its business, on normal commercial terms or on terms

no less favorable than terms available to or from independent

third parties, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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FIVE LARGEST SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the five largest suppliers
accounted for 50.8% of the total purchases of the Group. The
largest supplier accounted for 24.5% of the total purchases.
Qingling Group, a jointly controlled entity of the Company and
a Japanese trading company, through which Isuzu channels its
supply of parts and components to the Group, are included in the
five largest suppliers of the Group. Details of transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries and with Isuzu are set out in
the section “Connected Transactions” above. Other than disclosed
above, the Company’s directors and supervisors, their associates
or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital), did not have any
interests in the Group’s five largest suppliers for the year ended 31
December 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were less than
30% of the Group's total sales.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not issue or grant any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year.

There were no outstanding or conversion of convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the Company
or its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity during the year.

DESIGNATED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not hold any designated
deposits or any time deposits that were overdue but could not be
collected upon maturity.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, none of the Company or its subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company'’s listed securities during the year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 2,812 employees (2011:
3,048 employees). During the year, no material change was noted
for the number of employees or their remuneration policy. The
Group actively provided various training to its staff of all levels.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Group's staff retirement benefits scheme are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquires to all directors
and supervisors, the Company confirms that all directors and
supervisors have complied with the requirements of the Model
Code during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the vyear, the Company had complied with the code
provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (effective
until 31 March 2012) and the Corporate Governance Code (newly
effective from 1 April 2012) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules.

Further information on the Company's corporate governance
practices is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from
pages 31 to 52.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, there is sufficient public
float as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares are held
by the public throughout the year 2012.

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The audit committee has reviewed with the management and
auditors of the Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal controls
and financial reporting matters including the review of the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2013 AGM to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
(formerly known as Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd.) and
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board
WU Yun
CHAIRMAN

Chongging, the PRC
21 March 2013
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The Company puts high emphasis on and endeavors to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance. The Board believes that
good corporate governance practices are important to promote
investors’ confidence and protect the interest of our shareholders.
We attach importance to our staff, our code of conduct and our
corporate policies and standards, which together form the basis
of our corporate governance practices. The Board has adopted
sound corporate and disclosure practices, and is committed to
continuously improving those practices and cultivating an ethical
corporate culture.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has complied
with the code provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) and the Corporate
Governance Code (newly effective from 1 April 2012) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except for the deviations as
mentioned below:

(1) Mr. WU Yun, the chairman of the Board and the nomination
committee, was unable to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 6 June 2012 (the “2012 AGM") due
to the overseas expansion of export market and business
activities, and entrusted Mr. LIU Guangming, an executive
director, to chair the 2012 AGM on behalf of the chairman of
the Board and to have exchanges with the shareholders.

(2)  Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. XU Bingjin and Mr. LIU Tianni, all of whom
are independent non-executive directors, were unable to
attend the 2012 AGM due to business trip.

(3)  Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, an independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee, was unable to attend the 2012 AGM due to
business trip, and entrusted Mr. LIU Guangming, an executive
director, to answer questions.
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Looking ahead, the Company will keep our corporate governance
practices under periodic review to ensure our consistent
compliance, and will continue to improve those practices to be in
line with the latest developments, including any new amendment to
the Code.

THE BOARD

Members of the Board are accountable to the shareholders for the
success and sustainable development of the Company. The Board
is responsible for the management of all the important issues of
the Company, including the duties of convening general meetings,
implementing the resolutions passed at the general meetings,
determining the operating strategies and investment proposals of
the Company, formulating the plans of the Company for annual
financial budgets and final accounts, establishing and approving
the internal control and risk management systems and monitoring
the performance of the members of the senior management.
The directors shall make objective decisions for the interests of
the Company. As at the reporting date, the Board comprises 11
directors, including 7 executive directors and 4 independent non-
executive directors, with the percentage of the independent non-
executive directors among all the directors exceeding 36%.

Executive Directors

Mr. WU Yun (Chairman)

Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (Vice-chairman)
Mr. GAO Jianmin

Mr. Makoto TANAKA

Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA

Mr. LIU Guangming

Mr. PAN Yong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

Mr. XU Bingjin

Mr. LIU Tianni
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Biographical particulars of the directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all the
directors, including independent non-executive directors, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years,
and their re-election is subject to a vote of the shareholders.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the existing independent non-executive directors
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the overall strategies of the Company, and
monitors the performance of the senior management and the
related risks and control systems so as to achieve the development
objectives of the Company. Day-to-day management of the
Company is delegated to the executive directors and the senior
management, who are required to report back to the Board. All
the members of the Board have separate and independent access
to the senior management, and are provided with full and timely
information about the conduct of the business and development of
the Company, including monthly reports and recommendations on
significant matters.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the committees
under the Board, and will seek independent and professional
advices from them in respect of related matters.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy. During
2012, the Company held 4 board meetings, and the attendance
record of each director at the board meetings in 2012 is set out

ER_T-—_FHFEFESR below:
B H 42 8%
FEHER ZERARLEERS
BRR™ SRR ()

Attendance in Attendance by
B= person/Number Proxy/Number of
Directors of Meetings Meetings (Note)
HITES
Executive Directors
RE (ZE) 34 i
Mr. WU Yun (Chairman) 3/4 1/4
RER (B/1F/E) (RZZE—ZFA~BEZM) 3/3 0/3
Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (Vice-chairman) (appointed on 6 June 2012) 3/3 0/3
2R 2/4 2/4
Mr. GAQ Jianmin 2/4 2/4
A 4/4 0/4
Mr. Makoto TANAKA 4/4 0/4
AR = 2/4 2/4
Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA 2/4 2/4
258 4/4 0/4
Mr. LIU Guangming 4/4 0/4
BB 4/4 0/4
Mr. PAN Yong 4/4 0/4
gy (W-ZB——FXANBEME) 1/1 on
Mr. YUE Huagiang (resigned on 6 June 2012) 71 071
B HITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
Be= 3/4 1/4
Mr. LONG Tao 3/4 1/4
KNI 3/4 1/4
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang 3/4 1/4
"E® 3/4 1/4
Mr. XU Bingjin 3/4 1/4
ZIRMR 3/4 1/4
Mr. LIU Tianni 3/4 1/4

i BREARFANAREEF-—BT=
ke EEARTELFEEFSEH -
ANEELZAEMESRALFE
EeeH o

B 8 i

34

Note: Pursuant to Article 103 of the Articles of Association of the Company, where a
director is unable to attend the board meetings due to certain cause he may in
writing appoint other director to attend the board meetings on his/her behalf.
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At the board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters
including the Company's annual and interim financial statements,
annual budget, proposals for final and interim dividends, annual
report and half-year report. At least 14 days’' notice is given to all
directors for all regular board meetings and all directors are given
the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
agenda and board papers for each meeting are sent to all directors
at least 3 days in advance of every regular board meeting. All
minutes of the board meetings are kept by the company secretary
and are available to all directors for inspection.

There is no material financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between any two members of the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WU Nianging and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael were appointed
as company secretaries to take charge of the affairs in the PRC and
Hong Kong respectively on 28 April 1994. Mr. WU Nianging is a full-
time employee of the Company, and works as the chief accountant
of the Group. He is familiar with the daily routine of the Company.
The biographical details of Mr. WU are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael is a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong
and the principal of Tung & Co.. He holds a B.A. degree in law and
accounting from the University of Manchester, the United Kingdom.
He has over 10 years of experience as a practicing lawyer in Hong
Kong. Mr. TUNG is also the company secretary of a number of
companies listed in Hong Kong, and the independent non-executive
director of a company listed in Hong Kong. Although Mr. TUNG is
not an employee of the Company, he has been appointed by the
Board to advise on legal and governance-related issues. The primary
corporate contact person of the Company is Mr. WU Nianging, the
company secretary in charge of the PRC affairs.
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According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the persons who had
been working as company secretaries for the issuers on or before
31 December 1994 shall comply with the requirements in relation
to professional trainings set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
from the financial year beginning at 1 January 2017. However, as
confirmed respectively by Mr. WU Nianging and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu
Michael, they had taken the relevant professional trainings for no
less than 15 hours during the year of 2012.

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. WU Yun and Mr. Makoto TANAKA hold the positions of
Chairman of the Board and General Manager respectively, which are
two clearly separate positions.

The Chairman is responsible for leading, and overseeing the
operations of the Board, effectively planning the board meetings
and ensuring that the Board is acting in the best interests of the
Company. The Chairman shall proactively encourage directors
to fully participate in the Board's affairs and make contribution
to the functions of the Board. The Board, under the Chairman’s
leadership, has adopted good corporate governance practices and
procedures and has taken appropriate steps to maintain effective
communication with the shareholders.

The General Manager is responsible for managing the business
of the Company, as well as formulating and implementing the
Company'’s policies and is answerable to the Board in relation to the
overall management of the Company. The General Manager of the
Company works in close association with other executive directors
and the administration team of each core business division, ensuring
the funding requirements of the business of the Company are
sufficiently met and at the same time closely monitor the operation
and financial results of the Company according to business plans
and budgets, and advise the Board on matters in relation to the
Company’s development. The General Manager of the Company
is required to keep close communication with the Chairman
and all directors to keep them fully informed of all substantive
matters relating to the Company’s business development, and
is also responsible for building and maintaining a highly efficient
administrative support team to support him to discharge the
assigned duties in this position.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, directors
are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties. In addition, all directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
updates directors on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to
time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.
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LREERHENLE EETE_F According to the records provided by the directors, a summary
——F#MUWA—HEZ-ZT—_F of the trainings received by the directors from 1 April 2012 to 31
+ZA=+—HILHEEZE December 2012 is as follows:

MEEENT

BE EER
Directors Type of Trainings

WITES

Executive Directors

REEE (FE) A,
Mr. WU Yun (Chairman) A,
RESSEE (5/FE) (RZZE—Z—F A BEZF)

Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (Vice-chairman) (appointed on 6 June 2012)

REREE A,
Mr. GAO Jianmin A,
A A

Mr. Makoto TANAKA

AMRE=%4%

Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA

bl s bt

Mr. LIU Guangming

EBERAE

Mr. PAN Yong

gIER e (R ——F XN ANAEHIT)
Mr. YUE Huagiang (resigned on 6 June 2012)

WO wWwwWwwWw®®mW

NPPEP

z (& 9 LW
SHO0OO0OO0OO000000O0O000O0

BUIERITES

Independent Non-executive Directors
BEELE

Mr. LONG Tao

KRNI

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

mEBEE

Mr. XU Bingjin

BIR R4

Mr. LIU Tianni

>r>r>r>r>>>>
OO0OO0O0O0O0OO0

it - Note:

A. HEENS R/ IWAERER A. Attending briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.

1’ o

B. EENe R/ HMH e R, HwmiE B. Making speeches at briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.
FERES

C. MEBBBLE —REB EFH C. Reading seminar materials or magazines and updates relating to economy,
& ETARASEAMBEREERTE & general business, directors’ responsibilities and the Listing Rules or the latest
MEBROWT SN REERER development of other applicable regulatory requirements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has appointed a number of committees to discharge its
functions. Sufficient resources are provided to enable the board
committees to undertake their specific roles.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its nomination committee on 26 March
2012 with the terms of reference. The nomination committee
comprises four independent non-executive directors (namely Mr.
LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. XU Bingjin and Mr. LIU Tianni)
and one executive director (namely Mr. WU Yun). Mr. WU Yun,
an executive director, serves as the chairman of the nomination
committee, and is responsible for the nomination of the directors
of the Company. The committee is delegated by the Board to
formulate the policies for the nomination of directors and establish
the procedures for the nomination of directors and the standards for
the selection and recommendation of directors. It is also responsible
for review of the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the assessment of the independence of the independent non-
executive directors. Directors shall be elected at the shareholders’
general meeting for a term of three years. Upon expiry of the term,
a director shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, all directors
are appointed for a specific term. The re-election of the directors
was carried out at the annual general meeting in 2012, during
which, Mr. WU Yun, Mr. GAO Jianmin, Mr. Makoto TANAKA, Mr.
Ryozo TSUKIOKA, Mr. LIU Guangming and Mr. PAN Yong were re-
elected as the executive directors, Mr. YUE Huagiang resigned as
an executive director of the Company, Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI was
appointed as an executive director and the Vice-chairman of the
Board, and Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. XU Bingjin and
Mr. LIU Tianni were re-elected as the independent non-executive
directors of the Company.
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Members

WITES

Executive Director
REKXE (F/E)

Mr. WU Yun (Chairman)
BUIEMITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BEELE

Mr. LONG Tao
RANIFAE

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
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Mr. XU Bingjin
BIRfReE

Mr. LIU Tianni
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The nomination committee did not hold any meeting from its
establishment to 31 December 2012, a period of less than a whole
year, and then held its first meeting in March 2013, which was
within one year after its establishment. It reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board and assessed the independence
of the independent non-executive directors.

The attendance record of the members of the nomination
committee at the first meeting is set out below:

HEE ERRE
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings

11
A

A
A
11
A
A
11
A
A
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its remuneration committee on 20 April
2006. The remuneration committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang, Mr. XU Bingjin and Mr. LIU Tianni) and one executive
Director (namely Mr. LIU Guangming). According to the latest
requirements in relation to corporate governance, the Company
changed the Chairman of the remuneration committee from Mr.
LIU Guangming, an executive director, to Mr. SONG Xiaojiang,
an independent non-executive director in 2012. Duties of the
remuneration committee were formulated pursuant to the Code
issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the main duties include
the following: to make recommendations to the Board in respect
of the remuneration system and policy for the directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors; to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments;
to ensure that no director or any of this associate is involved in
deciding his own remuneration; other recommended duties set out
in various provisions of the Code.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:

A"

Number of persons

0 to 250,000 2
250,000 to 350,000 5
350,000 above 0

Note: The members of the senior management disclosed above refer to those

employees of other than directors and supervisors.

Details of directors’, supervisors’ and Chief Executive’'s emoluments
as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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The remuneration committee held one meeting in 2012, during
which, it made recommendations to the Board on the remunerations
of the independent non-executive directors and determined the
remuneration packages of the individual executive directors and
senior management. The attendance record of the members of
the remuneration committee at the meeting held in 2012 is set out
below:

HER ERARE
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings

A
A

A
11
A
A
A
11
11
A

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with specific
terms of reference in accordance with the Listing Rules. The audit
committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors,
who possess appropriate commercial and financial skills and
experience to understand financial statements. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. SONG Xiaojiang and other members are Mr. LONG

Tao, Mr. XU Bingjin and Mr. LIU Tianni.
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The terms of reference of the audit committee include the duties
to recommend the engagement and replacement of external
audit firms, oversee the Company’s internal auditing system and
implementation, verify the Company's financial information and
disclosure, examine the Company’s internal control system, and
take charge and act as a communication channel between internal

and external auditors.

The audit committee held two meetings in 2012 to review the final
results for 2011 and the interim results for 2012. The attendance
record of the members of the audit committee at the meetings in
2012 is set out below:

HER EERY
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board adopted the Terms of Reference for Corporate
Governance set out in Code D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code as the terms of reference for the Board to perform their
duties in relation to corporate governance on 26 March 2012, which
include developing and reviewing the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations
to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) for the Company’'s employees and directors;
and reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During 2012, the Board approved the corporate governance
practices, the inside information/price sensitive information
disclosure policy and the Company's whistle blowing policy.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility in overseeing the
operation of all business units under the Company’s management.
It shall appoint suitable qualified personnel to serve on the boards
of all subsidiaries operating in key business areas, attending their
board meetings to oversee the operations of these companies.
The management in each business division is accountable for the
operations and performance of the business within its area of
responsibility.

The Company’s management has implemented a system of internal
control to provide reasonable assurance that the Group's assets are
safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained, applicable
laws and regulations are complied with, reliable financial information
are provided for the Company’'s management for publication
purposes and investment and business risks affecting the Group are
identified and properly managed.

The Directors of the Company review the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries at least
once every year. The scope of a review includes financial control,
operation control, compliance control and risks management
functions. The Board will also consider the adequacy of resources,
staff qualification and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. As
at 21 March 2013, the Board has completed the aforementioned
review for 2012 and the Board is of the view that the Company’'s
internal control system can properly and effectively safeguard the
investments of the shareholders and the assets of the Group.
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PRICE-SENSITIVE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Company
is aware of its obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules and has established the
inside information/price-sensitive information disclosure policy with
close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors and
supervisors. After specific enquiry with all the directors and
supervisors, all directors and supervisors confirmed that they have
completely complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout 2012.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The supervisory committee comprises three members, two of
whom are representatives of the shareholders (namely Ms. MIN
Qing and Ms. ZHOU Hong) and one of whom is the representative
of the staff and workers (namely Mr. LEI Bin). Ms. MIN Qing serves
as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee. During 2012, the
Supervisors of the Company exercised their right of supervision
in accordance with the laws to protect the legal interests of the
shareholders, the Company and the employees. The details of the
work of the supervisory committee are set out in the Supervisory
Committee’s Report in this annual report.
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in 2012. The
attendance record of the members of the supervisory committee at

The supervisory committee held two meetings

the meetings in 2012 is set out below:

HEE EBRE
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

11
n
Al
il

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The external auditors currently appointed by the Company are
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants
LLP (formerly known as Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd.) and
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as its PRC and international
auditors respectively. In order to maintain their independence,
these accountants do not take on non-audit work. The work the
external auditors are engaged to perform must produce measurable
efficiency and added value to the Company and should not cause
adverse effect on the independence or independent standing of
their audit function. The remunerations of the auditors are disclosed
in the financial statements.
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DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With the assistance of the accounting department, the Board is
responsible for preparing the financial statements for each financial
year and ensuring that, in preparing such financial statements,
appropriate accounting policies are adopted and applied and the
PRC accounting standards and systems and International Financial
Reporting Standards are observed, to give a true and fair view of
the financial position and operating results of the Company. The
statement of the auditors about their responsibilities on the Group's
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on pages 53 to 54.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

After the announcement of the Company’s interim and annual
financial results, the Company has proactively arranged for briefing
meetings for people from the investment community at regular
intervals, using the opportunity to promote investor relations and
two-way communication. The Company, through the investor
relations manager, responds to the information requests and
inquiries from the investment community. The Company also
publishes information such as the Company's announcements and
circulars on its website (www.gingling.com.cn) in a timely manner
under the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend the annual
general meeting in which the Chairman and directors will answer
questions about the Company’s business raised by shareholders.
The Company distributes annual and interim reports to shareholders
in a timely manner for their inspection.
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EEHE T _FEREARAF The attendance record of the members of the Board at the annual
REWLEWT ¢ general meeting in 2012 is set out below:
HERS
[ETN-PN
Attendance in
2= person/Number
Directors of Meetings
HITES
Executive Directors
REEE (F/E) 0/1
Mr. WU Yun (Chairman) 0/1
RESLE (R-ZE——F X AHEZMT) 1/1
Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (appointed on 6 June 2012) 11
SRREE 0/1
Mr. GAO Jianmin on
FH A 5 9 A 11
Mr. Makoto TANAKA Al
AMR=%4% 11
Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA 11
2R L& 11
Mr. LIU Guangming 11
EBRE 11
Mr. PAN Yong Al
geEoa iy (R ZE——FNANBHMT) T EA
Mr. YUE Huagiang (resigned on 6 June 2012) N/A
B IEITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
EELLE 0/1
Mr. LONG Tao 0/1
KRNI 4 0/1
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang 0/1
REREAE 0N
Mr. XU Bingjin 0n
2R L& 0N
Mr. LIU Tianni 0/1
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the financial year, the Company did not make any
amendment to its constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of
the Company:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to Article 80 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
two or more shareholders who hold an aggregate of 10% or more
of the shares carrying voting rights at the meeting proposed to be
held may, sign one or several written requisition in the same form
requesting the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
of shareholders or a class meeting of shareholders, specifying the
objects of the meeting. Upon the receipt of the aforesaid written
request(s), the Board shall convene an extraordinary general
meeting or a class meeting of shareholders as soon as possible. The
number of the shares held as aforesaid shall be calculated based on
these shares held by the shareholders as at the date of the written
requisition.

Where the Board fails to give a notice convening the meeting within
thirty days upon the receipt of the aforesaid written requisition,
the requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, within four
months upon the receipt of the said requisition by the Board. A
meeting convene by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Bond.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason
of the failure of the Board duly convene a meeting, shall be born by
the Company and be deducted from the amounts payable by the
Company to such directors who were in default.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’
general meetings by shareholders

The content of a proposal shall be a matter that should be
determined by shareholders’ general meeting, which shall have
definite topics to be discussed and specific matters for resolution
and shall be in line with the laws and administrative regulations.

Shareholders that independently or collectively hold 3% or more of
shares in the Company may make a temporary proposal and submit
it to the convener(s) in written form ten days prior to a shareholders’
general meeting. The convener(s) shall give a supplementary notice
of shareholders’ general meeting to announce the content of the
temporary proposal within two days upon receipt of the proposal.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, after sending out a
notice of shareholders’ general meeting, the convener(s) shall not
make any amendments to the proposals included in the notice or
add any new proposals.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board of the Company in writing through Mr. WU Nianging, the
company secretary, whose contact details are as follows:

Mr. WU Nianging

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

1 Xiexing Cun, Zhong Liang Shan, Jiu Long Po District,
Chongging, the PRC

E-mail: gloffice@gingling.com.cn

TEL: (86) 23-65264125

Fax: (86) 23-68830397

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries
and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of
the Company, where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’
questions.
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In 2013, the Company will continue to dedicate efforts into
enhancing the standard of its corporate governance according to the
ongoing regulatory changes, development trend of the Company,
and feedback opinions from shareholders, ensuring a stable and
healthy growth for the Company while adding value to shareholders.

By Order of the Board
WU Nianqing
Company Secretary

Chongging, the PRC
21 March 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF QINGLING MOTORS CO., LTD.

BRSERDERA A
(@ Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited company established
in the People's Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qingling
Motors Co., Ltd. (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 147, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
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Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’'s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2012 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
21 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Research expenses

Share of loss of an associate

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Basic earnings per share

BZ BZ

“E-CF “E2—-F
+=ZB=+-BH +=A=+-H
LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Hizt AREFT AREFTT
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
5, 6 6.185.810 8,148,839
(5,414,560) (7,140,510)

771,250 1,008,329

155,638 164,457

4,470 71

(399,552) (576,586)

(162,460) (166,634)

(21,354) (12,705)

(349) =

9 347,643 416,932
7 (51,970) (60,782)
295,673 356,150

290,701 353,658

4,972 2,492

295,673 356,150

14 RMBO0.12 RMBO.14
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Interest in an associate

Deferred tax assets

Prepayments for acquisition
of non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Bills receivable
Prepaid lease payments
Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade, bills and other payables
Tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

it
NOTES

15
16
17
18
[
21

22

23
24
25
16

26
27

28

2

“E--F “E—-F
+=ZA=t—-HB +=ZRA=+-H
31/12/2012  31/12/2011
AREFT  ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,455,686 1,607,576
44,809 46,192
49,967 40,654
25,570 34,675
5,984 —
2,330 2,330
20,294 —
1,604,640 1,731,427
827,546 904,881
813,207 910,332
2,565,038 2,415,438
1,383 1,383
2,749,331 3,326,687
1,097,921 848,928
8,054,426 8,407,649
2,096,599 2,559,957
21,090 33,624
2,117,689 2,693,581
5,936,737 5,814,068
7,641,377 7,645,495
2,482,268 2,482,268
4,764,115 4,771,285
7,246,383 7,253,553
294,994 291,942
7,541,377 7,545,495

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 147 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

LIU Guangming DIRECTOR
PAN Yong DIRECTOR
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At 1 January 2011

Profit and total
comprehensive
income for the year

Appropriation for the year

2010 final dividend paid
(Note 13)

Dividend paid by a
subsidiary to non-
controlling interests

At 31 December 2011

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Appropriation for the year

Unclaimed H shares dividend
of prior year

2011 final dividend paid
(Note 13)

Dividend paid by a subsidiary to
non-controlling interests

At 31 December 2012

(a) BARPESEEE ZEHOARY
572,206,000 (=T ——&F : AR
#572,206,0007C) ;KB - HEAE
EEERIEREEARRARERL
AAEERAE(EE) AR QA (E
REEBDRERASEBEARAA(E
RODB/AERDAINEEFBEUIER
—NNEFEEN—HH  LBREAR
7) B 37 B BT % 77 1,500,000,000 A% &9
H & A K #1,500,000,000 7T 2 #

D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

NAREEEAEERE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FERER

R

Equity

AELMEE  [EEAES attributable
KA  RAHRE EADEE  Statutory Discretionary  RERF tonon-  EHAE
Share Share Capital surplus surplus Retained @3t controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve fund reserve fund profits Total interests equity
ANERTT ANEBTFT AEETT AREFT ABRETT AREFT ARETrT AREFT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

(Wa)  (WE11)  (Hit12)
(note a) (note 11) (note 12)
2,482,268 1,764,905 572,239 809,008 2347 1517356 7,148,122 289,657 7,437,779
- — — - — 353,658 353,658 2492 356,150
- - — 34,906 — (34,906) = - -
= = = = = (248,227) (248,227) = (248,227)
= = = = = = = (207) (207)
2,482,268 1,764,905 572,239 843914 2347 1587880 7,253,553 291,942 754549
- - — - - 290,701 290,701 4,972 295,673
— — — 28,834 — (28,834) = — -
= - - - - 1 1 - 1
- - — — - (297,872) (297,872) - (297,872)
= = = = = = = (1,920) (1,920)
2,482,268 1,764,905 572,239 872,748 2347 1551876 7,246,383 294994 7,541,377
Note:

(a) The capital reserve mainly includes an amount of approximately

RMB572,206,000 (2011: RMB572,206,000) which represents the excess of the
value of the net assets immediately before the establishment of the Company
injected into the Company by #2358 (%£E)GR AR (“Qingling Group”) and
B35 5E AR AT ("Qingling”) as part of the reorganisation in 1994 which was
approved by the State Administration of State-owned Assets, over the nominal
value of the 1,500,000,000 shares issued upon establishment of the Company of

RMB1,500,000,000.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interests in relation to a discounted hill
receivable
Share of loss of an associate
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Release of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of investment properties
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Net foreign exchange gain

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease in inventories
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase in hills receivable
Decrease in trade, bills and other payables

Cash from (used in) operations
Income taxes paid

NET CASH GENERATED
FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

BE-Z-—-F §2_F2——-%
+ZA=+-B +=A=+-H
LFE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AREFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
347,643 416,932
(102,696) (112,196)
129 —

349 —
300,361 287,498
9,105 9,105

1,383 1,383

7,495 6,174

1 17

(1,927) =
561,843 608,913
77,335 366,535
97,125 (260,002)
(149,600) (1,208,257)
(479,936) (363,562)
106,767 (856,373)
(64,504) (58,690)
42,263 (915,063)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Placement of fixed deposit with banks

Withdrawal of fixed deposit with banks

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Prepayments for acquisition of non-current assets

Interest received

Investment in an associate

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowing obtained in relation to a discounted
bill receivable

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders

Unclaimed H shares dividend of prior year

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY

Effects of exchange rate changes on
the balance of cash held
in foreign currencies

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented by
bank balances and cash

BE-ZT-—% BHE-Z—-F
+ZA=+-B +=A=+-H
LFE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
ARETFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
(3,031,123) (5,467,184)
3,598,716 5,863,120
(154,592) (164,518)
(20,294) =
112,459 97,295
(6,333) =

130 3
498,963 328,716
5,631 —
(297,872 (248,227)
(1,920) (207)

1 —

(294,160) (248,434)
247,066 (834,781)
848,928 1,683,709
1,927 —
1,097,921 848,928
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

1. GENERAL

The Company is a Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited
company established in the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC")
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company is 1 Xiexing Cun, Zhong
Liang Shan, Jiu Long Po District, Chongging, the PRC. The principal
activities of the company and its subsidiaries and joint controlled
entities (the “"Group”) are the production and sale of Isuzu light-duty
trucks, multi-purposes vehicles, pick-up trucks, medium and heavy-
duty trucks and automobile parts and accessories.

The parent and ultimate holding company of the Company is
Qingling Group (a state-owned enterprise established in Chongging,
the PRC).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") which is also the functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") which has been effective.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Asset;

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
— Transfers of Financial Assets.

Except as described below, the application of the above
amendments to Standards in the current year has had no material
effect on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial
statements and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKFRS
7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets in the current
year. The amendments increase the disclosure requirements for
transactions involving the transfer of financial assets in order to
provide greater transparency around risk exposures when financial
assets are transferred.

The Group has an arrangement with a bank to transfer to the bank
its contractual rights to receive cash flows from a bill receivable. The
arrangements are made through discounting that bill receivable to
the bank on a full recourse basis. Specifically, if the bill receivable
is not paid at maturity, the bank has the right to request the Group
to pay the unsettled balance. As the Group has not transferred
the significant risks and rewards relating to the bill receivable, it
continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the bill receivable.
The relevant disclosures have been made regarding the transfer
of the bill receivable on application of the amendments to HKFRS
7 (see note 25). The Group has no such arrangement as at 31
December 2011 and therefore the amendments have no impact on
prior year disclosure.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

The Group has not early applied the following New and Revised
Standards, Amendments and Interpretation (New and Revised
HKFRSs) that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2009-2011 Cycle'

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Government loans’

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities’

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 7 and Transition Disclosures®

Amendments to Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

and HKFRS 12

Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance’

Amendments to Investment Entities?
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Cont'd)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19

(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27

Financial Instruments?®

Consolidated Financial Statements’

Joint Arrangements’

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’

Fair Value Measurement’

Employee Benefits’

Separate Financial Statements’

(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28

(as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK (IFRIC)-Int 20

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase

of a Surface Mine’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

3  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

4  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial
statements. HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities will be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10.
Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation, that is,
control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control
that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.



e B Wk MR

HZE2012612A31B ILEE

2. ERFAIRKEITEEM
BHRELER ([ FEBMBR
HER ) (8

B BMERHE BEQIAARK
B2 AT R RS ET 2 A ()

EEGHREENENERAS
BRI EAEINFEAL LA T M
Wi BBME RS ENE NS
EESHIXS S RASHGA
B ENA AR - B (B2
BEESR)RESBRARLHE
B ABTEREER LS
REBMEREENENE S &
@E%@%oﬁﬁ%*%ﬁﬁ%
EBIENH A ﬁv“%%A
RS BAT  BARE
m%twm%ﬂ&anmmﬁ
 RBE BRI EREIS
ABRHAS A= AER  #£A
mHI R - HF A E R A
N
BERABENE ALDABR
P A E  MREE SR
RRIEIH LR EH BB
B 2555 o b I

H> |3

/
IJI

b

EAVBREEANFI2H A —E
WEER  BANEWNEB R A

BERH BMEQRRXIEE
HEBNERBHERER
BEMs  EHUBHREELE
125 B AR ERIRTERA 2 38

‘EH;"

65

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Cont’d)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. HKFRS 11
deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. HK (SIC) — Int 13 Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers
will be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under
HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations
or joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are
three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint
ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities
under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting or proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Cont’d)

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the
application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application permitted provided
that all of these standards are applied at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five standards
will be adopted in the Group's consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 January 2013. Currently, the Group's
investment in EiA TR(EE)EEBEAR AT (“Qingling Isuzu
Engine”) and ERATRER)AEHERBERLE  (“Qingling
Isuzu Sales”), which are classified as jointly controlled entities under
HKAS 31 and accounted for using the proportionate consolidation
method. Under HKFRS 11, Qingling Isuzu Engine and Qingling
Isuzu Sales will be classified as joint ventures and accounted
for using the equity method, resulting in the aggregation of the
Group’s proportionate share of Qingling Isuzu Engine’s and Qingling
Isuzu Sales's respective net assets and items of profit or loss
into a single line item which will be presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as “interests in joint ventures” and
“share of profits (loss) of joint ventures” respectively. The profit
after tax of the Group will be the same under equity method and
under proportionate consolidation method. The summarised financial
information in respect of Qingling Isuzu Engine and Qingling Isuzu
Sales are disclosed in note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Cont’d)

Other than the above, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of other New and Revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair

value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out as below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the vyear are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Total
comprehensive income and expenses of a subsidiary is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of the associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
the associate used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. \When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Investment in an associate (Cont’d)

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in
the Group' consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which ventures have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled
entities. The Group reports its interests in jointly controlled entities
using proportionate consolidation. The Group's share of the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of the jointly controlled entities is
combined with the equivalent items in the consolidated financial
statements on a line-by-line basis. When a group entity transacts
with its jointly controlled entity, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the jointly controlled entity are recognised in
the Group' consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the jointly controlled entity that are not related to the
Group.

The financial statements of jointly controlled entities used for
proportionate consolidation purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group, and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income from
a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’'s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress, except for
specialised production facilities and moulds, over their estimated
useful lives after taking into account of their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method.

Specialised production facilities and moulds which can be identified
in relation to specific production processes are depreciated by
reference to the expected production volume of these facilities and
moulds after taking into account of their estimated residual values.

The estimated useful lives, residual values, the expected production
volume and the depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the assets (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

Investment properties are initially measured at costs, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation
is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

For a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property,
the transfer is made when there is a change in use, evidenced by
end of owner-occupation.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finances lease whenever the terms of lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Leasehold land and building (Cont’d)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is released over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable

assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Government grants (Cont’d)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income, if any, in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss over the useful lives of the related assets. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt
with as payments to defined contribution plans where the Group's
obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associate
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
difference associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Taxation (Cont’d)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effective of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expensed from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss
in the period when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets (Cont’d)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees, points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bills receivables, bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables of the Group are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated
future cash flows of the loans and receivables have been negatively
affected. The objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables such as trade
receivables and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable or other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For loans and receivables measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade, bills and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees, points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont'd)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to be incurred
to completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in customer taste or competitor actions in response to
severe consumer product industry cycles. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of the reporting period. As at 31
December 2012, the carrying amount of inventory net of allowance
for obsolete inventories is 827,546,000 (net of allowance for
obsolete inventories of RMB14,677,000) (2011: RMB904, 881,000,
net of allowance for obsolete inventories of RMB14,677,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont'd)

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The
impairment may arise as a result of changes in debtors’ financial
position. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables is RMB813,207,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of RMB4,595,000) (31 December 2011: carrying
amount of RMB910,332,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts of
RMB4,595,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont'd)

Depreciation basis of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than specialised production
facilities and moulds) are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual values. The Group’'s management determines the estimated
useful lives of its property, plant and equipment. The estimates
of useful lives are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge in the
year where the useful lives are less than the previously estimated
lives and will write off technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Specialised production
facilities and moulds are depreciated by reference to the expected
production volume of these facilities and moulds, after taking
into account the estimated residual values. The Group assesses
annually the expected production volume of these facilities and
moulds, taking into account the lifecycle and technical advantage of
products. If the expectation differs from the original estimates, such
differences from the original estimates will impact the depreciation
charges in the current year in which the estimates change and in
future periods.

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents revenue arising on goods sold by the Group
to outside customers, net of discounts and sales related tax. The
following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major
products:

BE-%--f BE-ZT--F
T=A=1t-H t=A=t+-H

LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

AEETT  ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Sales of trucks and vehicles 5,589,242 7,217,655
Sales of automobile parts and accessories 596,568 931,184
6,185,810 8,148,839
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sales of five
categories of products — light-duty trucks, multi-purposes vehicles,
pick-up trucks, medium and heavy-duty trucks and automobile
parts and accessories and the chief operating decision makers (e.g.
the Company's directors) also review the segment information
by these categories to allocate resources to segments and to
assess their performance. Certain items (including expenses,
assets and liabilities) related to the jointly controlled entities under
proportionate consolidation are not regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision makers for the purpose of resources allocation

and performance assessment.

Principal business segments are as follows:

Light-duty trucks — manufacture and sales of
light-duty trucks

Multi-purposes vehicles —  manufacture and sales of
multi-purposes vehicles

Pick-up trucks — manufacture and sales of
pick-up trucks

Medium and — manufacture and sales of

heavy-duty trucks medium and heavy-duty trucks

Automobile parts and — manufacture and sales of

accessories automobile parts and accessories



e B R R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ2012F12A318 1L FE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
6. oHER(E) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(i) DWURERES (i) Segment revenues and results
AEBRSINEBREES D The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by
wmr operating segment:
H=z—_ZT——F+=-_A=+—8H For the year ended 31 December 2012
EFE
#a
BUEEE  SWERE B+E HERERE  BHRHH &8
Multi- Medium and  Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated

AEETL  AEMTT  AEETT ARETT ARETT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Dbk Segment revenue 2,772,409 44,245 1,755,703 1,016,885 596,568 6,185,810
DEEE Segment result 78,016 214 153,363 16,111 1,085 250,716
EMERER Central administration costs (67,428)
FEMA Interest income 95,930
A Other income 58,239
NG Share of loss of an associate (349)
RRILFIGHERE LA REHIEBEE ZRX Items related to jointly controlled entities

under proportionate consolidation 10,535
Syl Profit before tax 347,643
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6. oHER(E)
(i) 2BWBREE(E)

H=z—_ZT——F+-_A=+—8H
IEFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(i) Segment revenues and results (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

e
BUHEAE  SYRAE K+E hERERE  BHRHBHE ga
Multi- Medium and ~ Automobile

Light-duty purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated
NEEFT NEEFT NEEFT NEETT NEEFT NEEFT
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000

7 ElE Segment revenue 3,801,231 14,834 2,066,006 1,373,644 893,124 8,148,839
PEEE Segment result 108,326 1,834 182,091 22,083 (13,977) 300,357
EmERER Central administration costs (59,053)
FHEMA Interest income 107,725
HitA Other income 51,649
BRULBIGHEREZ AREHNEREA X Items related to jointly controlled entities

under proportionate consolidation 16,254
B A& Profit before tax 416,932
KB B @ =k B KT SR 3 At The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
AREFE S HEMRER - o3P % as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
4 s A2 s RN Sk A i €5 th 4 T 2 result represents the profit earned by or loss from each segment
B ABEkA - EMlkA -~ D1E without allocation of central administration costs, interest income,
B 4% N B 5 18 1A &BZ At ] & B other income, share of loss of an associate and items related to
FRE AR EREEA Y E jointly controlled entities under proportionate consolidation. This is
32 o | Jh ) O BB AR AN h o 2 up A the measure reported to the chief operating decision makers for the

ADBEERMFGBRBAZFTET

;4_

o

97

purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment.



RE B WK ME NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ZE2012F12H31HILFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
6. DIER(E) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
(i) »2PEERAE (ii) Segment assets and liabilities
AEBEEREBBEREES D The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
wmr operating segment:
RZE——F+=-A=+—8H As at 31 December 2012
AE
BUHEAE  SYRAE EFE wERERE  BHRHH G&
Multi- Medium and ~ Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated

AEETL  AEMTT  AEETT ARETT ARETT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AE Assets
DHEE Segment assets 2,149,998 10,895 901,909 1,261,668 187,780 4,512,250
Pz EEREE Interchangeably used assets
between segments
— 0% BERSHE — property, plant and equipment 687,425
— B Lifs — prepaid lease payments 46,192
—FE — inventories 183,223
RENE Investment properties 49,967
RS AE BATE Prepayments for acquisition of
non-current assets 20,294
BITER R TE R Bank deposits and bank balances 3,605,492
REE AR ZRE Investment in an associate 5,984
RRUAIAGERE KRR BB EE Assets of jointly controlled entities
under proportionate consolidation 508,227
At RTARAE Other unallocated assets 40,012
RBAE Consolidated total assets 9,659,066
BfE Liabilties
AHEE Segment liabilities 251,636 3,767 131,305 71,593 21,694 479,995
TUARZERER - ERREREMENTE Unallocated trade, bills and other payables 1,498,730
HE R ARz AR Other unallocated liabilities 20,019
RRIFIGHERE ZLREHER AR Liabilities of jointly controlled entities
under proportionate consolidation 118,945
GRBAR Consolidated total liabilities 2,117,689

o8
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2011

Assets
Segment assets

Interchangeably used assets between
segments
— property, plant and equipment
— prepaid lease payments
— inventories
Investment properties
Bank deposits and bank balances
Assets of jointly controlled entities
under proportionate consolidation
Other unallocated assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Unallocated trade, bills and other payables

Other unallocated liabilities

Liabilities of jointly controlled entities
under proportionate consolidation

Consolidated total liabilities

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Consolidated

ANEBTFT

RMB'000

4,661,495

728,955
47,575
102,036
40,664
3,963,242

426,281
178,838

10,139,076

579,952

1,936,980
31,690

44,959

2,593,581
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o All assets are allocated to operating segments other than
interchangeably used assets between segments, investment
properties, bank deposits and bank balances and other
unallocated assets held by the head office; and

° All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than unallocated trade, bills and other payables and other
unallocated liabilities of the head office.

The assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities under
proportionate consolidation are not allocated to segment assets
and liabilities. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(iii) Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BUERE  SURAE R+E HERENE
Multi- Medium and

Light-duty ~ purposes Pick-up  Heavy-duty
trucks vehicles trucks trucks
NEBTE  NEETT AR ARETT
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000

OTHER INFORMATION
Amount included in the measure

of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:
Additions of property, plant and

equipment 61,436 — 5,836 8,185
Prepayments for acquisition of

non-current assets - - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,365 — — 5,740
Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment 131,170 — 58,843 84,420
Depreciation of investment

properties - - - -
Release of prepaid lease

payments — — — —

hE
BHREH
Automobile
parts and
accessories
NEETFT
RMB000

2R

Unallocated
NEEFT
RMB'000

89,953

20,924

25,928

7,4%

1,383

Consolidated
NREFT
RMB000

165,410

20,924
9,106

300,361

7,4%

1383
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(iii) Other segment information (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

OTHER INFORMATION
Amount included in the measure
of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:

Additions of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of investment
properties

Release of prepaid lease

payments

(iv)

#HERE

Light-duty

trucks

NEBTT
RMB000

29597
4,236

81,049

SNERE
Multi-
purposes
vehicles
NERTT
RMB000

KFE

Pick-up
trucks
NEETFT

RMB000

tARENE
Medium and
Heavy-duty
trucks
NEETFT

RMB000

hE
BHREH
Automobile
parts and
accessories
NEETFT
RMB000

2R Ga

Unallocated Consolidated

ANERTT  AEFTT
RMB000  RMB'000
128,213 168,725
= 9,106

45,067 287498
6,174 6,174
1,383 1,383

Geographical information

Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) of the Group
amounting to RMB1,602,310,000 (2011: RMB1,729,097,000) are
located in the PRC and substantially all of the sales of the Group are

also made to customers located in the PRC. The Group has made

limited export sales to countries outside the PRC which accounted

for approximately 1.20% (2011: 1.38%) of the Group's revenue.

All of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to

property, plant and equipment are located in the PRC for both years

presented.



e B R R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ2012F12A318 I FE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

6. oHER(E) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

v) EBEZEEFZzEH (v) Information about major customers
BRERAEEEB)ARRAA(E No revenue from a single external customer other than Qingling
REEBDREKRBRARIN  BE Group and its subsidiaries contributed 10% or more of the Group's
B INERR P Hy M A AN £ B Uk revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue from
A10%SK A E - HE—FE——F Qingling Group and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,721,009,000
TZA=+—RHLFE XBE (2011: RMB1,628,499,000).

REBLREHRBRARZEKAABA
R ¥ 1,721,009,000 T(= & — —
£ ARM1,628,499,0007T)

7. FBHXE 7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BE-%--F BE-F—-F
+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H
LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
ARETFT ARETr
RMB’000 RMB'000
BN H3 %418 Current tax 51,970 58,790
EIEFIERS (K :E21) Deferred tax charge (Note 21) — 1,992

51,970 60,782
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

According to the Notice of Certain Tax Policies for Implementation
of Exploration and Development of Western Region (Cai Shui [2011]
No. 58), a company located in the western region of the PRC and
engaged in the business encouraged by the PRC government
is entitled to a preferential Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") rate
of 15%. According to the Notice of the Enterprise Income Tax
for Implementation of Exploration and Development of Western
Region (Guo Shui [2012] No. 12), a company located in the western
region of the PRC is entitled to apply to the tax authority for the
preferential EIT rate of 15% if certain conditions set out in the
notice are satisfied. The Company, EEE# KRB AR A A (“Qingling
Moulds"”), a subsidiary of the Group, and Qingling Isuzu Engine, a
jointly controlled entity have applied and obtained the approval from
the relevant authority in respect of the application of the preferential
EIT rate for years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012. Although
the Encouraged Industries Catalogue in the Western Region is not
yet issued by the government authorities as of the date of issuance
of the consolidated financial statements, in the opinion of the
directors, the Company, Qingling Moulds, and Qingling Isuzu Engine
are able to satisfy the conditions set out in relevant notices and the
requirement of the Encouraged Industries Catalogue and therefore
continue to apply the preferential EIT rate of 15% in the current
period.

BEEHEMHR L (“Qingling Technical Center”), a subsidiary of
the Group, and Qingling Isuzu Sales, a jointly controlled entity are
both subject to 25% (2011: 25%) EIT rate for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

BE-%--f BE-E--F
+=ZA=+t—-B +=A=1+-H
LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AEETT  ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Profit before tax 347,643 416,932
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of 15%
(2011: 15%) 52,146 62,540
Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 657 181
Additional tax benefit and refund applicable to
the Group (note) (1,188) (2,048)
Effect of share of loss of an associate 52 —
Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary and
a jointly controlled entity 76 109
Effect of tax losses not recognised 227 —
Tax charge for the year 51,970 60,782

Note:
The additional tax benefit and refund applicable to the Group are as follows:

Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulation, expenses in research nature are
deductible at 50% of the cost incurred additionally. The related tax benefit amounted to
RMB1,188,000 (2011: RMB2,048,000) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

8. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group has a service agreement with its ultimate holding
company, Qingling Group, whereby the Group will reimburse the
contributions made by Qingling Group to a defined contribution
pension scheme administered by the municipal government in
respect of the staff of the Group. According to such scheme, the
Company shall annually pay an amount, calculated at a percentage
of the total wages of the staff, to a retirement fund administered
by the municipal government. The amount paid during the year
under such arrangement amounted to RMB22,185,000 (2011:
RMB18,606,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:

Salaries and other payments and benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Total staff costs (including directors’ and
supervisors' remuneration (see note 10)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets (included
in cost of sales)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties

Release of prepaid lease payments

Minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of rented premises and
production facilities

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense
Interests in relation to a discounted bill receivable
Auditor's remuneration

and after crediting:

Sales of scrap materials
Compensation from suppliers

Interest income from bank deposits and balances

Income from renting of investment properties

Less: direct operating expenses from investment
properties that generated rental income
during the year

Income from renting of moulds and tooling

equipment
Government grant
Net foreign exchange gain

HE-%--f BE-E--F
t=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H
HFE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
ANREFT ANEEFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
133,352 146,932
22,185 18,606
155,537 165,538

1 17

9,105 9,105
300,361 287,498
7,495 6,174

1,383 1,383
34,869 28,856
5,404,072 7,130,022
129 —

3,600 3,107

2,307 2,913
17,130 —
102,696 112,196
6,912 6,180
(1,239) (1,086)
25,104 27,324

53 9,424

4,471 —




e MK RRME

HZE2012612A318 LEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

0. EX EERTHAR
<&

10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

P 53

P 53

B4R (Wi EiER B4R f BiER
BB Pefomance  HEER BB Pefomance  HEER
Salaries related  Retirement Salaries related  Refiement  =%--%
and  incentive benefit and  incentive benefit 01
other  payments scheme other  payments scheme it
[notg] - contributions benefits [notg] - contributions Total
A A\EETT  NEEFT AREFT ARETR NEEFT ARETT AREFT 7
AMBOOO  AMBO0  AMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  AMBOOO  RMBUOO RMB000
6k £ Executive directors
g Wu Yun - n - 1 40 - 3% - 10 40
BER Gao Jianmin = 387 = " 348 = 387 = 10 37
i Liu Guangming - W - 1l k1] - kil - 10 w
Pan Yong = 337 = n 348 = 337 = 10 37
Yue Huagiang (resigned on
6 June 2012) = = = = = = 337 = 10 37
ELEAN Mekoto Taneka - - - - - - - - - -
RBR= Ryozo Tsukioka - - ~ - - — - — - -
Naotoshi Tsutsumi
{appointed on 6 Jung 2012) - - - - - - - - - -
- 1404 - 4 1448 - 174 - 50 1791
RUkanEs Independent non-executive
directors
Long Tao 120 - - - 120 120 - - - 120
Song Xiaojing 10 - - - 120 10 - - - 120
YuBingjn 10 = = = i) 1 = = = i)
Liu Tianni 1 = = = 120 % = = = %8
40 - - - 40 458 - - - 48
Supervisors' remuneration
Min Qing = % 80 " 125 = & 8 10 127
Zhang Wanji (resigned on
6 June 2012) = = = = = = 17 L} 5 62
B Thou Hong - i i} 1 104 - i} 06 1 101
Hl Lei Bin = i} 69 " 109 = = = = =
- 9 n il 38 - 80 188 n 0
40 14% m L] 2266 458 1821 188 n 2539

Hrat - NBERES D2 EEFTNENKRRE
EARMFMEZES(H—RHRTE
ER=BBILIFRTEEAR)#

% o

AHRBEALEETRARAITERAE
BoMEXBEZHFMEERE
BEETBRAEREAER 2 RBEM
X2 o
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Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to the
individual performance of the supervisors and approved by the Remuneration
Committee (composed of one executive director and three independent non-
executive directors).

Mr. Makoto TANAKA is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

No directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: nil).

All the five highest paid individuals of the Group for both years were
directors.

11. TRANSFER TO STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

The statutory surplus reserve fund represents the appropriation
of 10% of profit after taxation for the year of the Company,
calculated in accordance with relevant Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises in the PRC (“PRC GAAP") and the Articles of
Association of the Company. The appropriation may cease to apply
if the balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund has reached
50% of the registered capital of the Company. According to the
Articles of Association of the Company, statutory surplus reserve
fund can be used to make up prior year losses, to expand production
operations or to increase capital. The Company may capitalise the
statutory surplus reserve fund by way of bonus issues provided
that the remaining amount of statutory surplus reserve fund after
such distribution shall not be less than 25% of the registered capital
of the Company. The amount shall be submitted to shareholders’
general meeting for approval.

12. TRANSFER TO DISCRETIONARY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

No amount was appropriated to the discretionary reserve fund
in 2012 (2011: nil). The balance amounting to RMB2,347,000 of
the discretionary reserve fund was the amount appropriated by a
subsidiary of the Company — Qingling Moulds in previous years at
a percentage of the profit after taxation of the respective years in
accordance with PRC GAAP and Articles of Association of Qingling
Moulds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

13. DIVIDEND

B--F BE-F—-F
=+-B t=A=t-H

LLFE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AEETT AEETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

:H

Dividends recognised as distributions
during the year:
2011 Final, paid — RMBO0.12

(2011: 2010 Final, paid — RMBO.10) per share
297,872 248,227

A final dividend amounting to RMB248,227,000 or RMBO0.10 per
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: final
dividend amounting to RMB297,872,000 or RMB0.12 per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2011) has been proposed
by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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HZ2012F12A318 I FE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
14. ERER 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
ARG ERFEAEBREERER The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
BRRE T EREGE - owners of the Company is based on the following data:
Z7 Earnings
BE-Z--F BE-%—-F
+ZA=+t-B +=ZA=1+-AH
LEE LFEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
BAFEERERRTH 2 &F| Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per
(KRRl EAEGEEERT) share (Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company) 290,701 353,658
&2 & B Number of shares
B2-%--F BE-E--F
+=A=+t-B +=ZA=1+-AH
LEE LFEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AREFT AEEFT
‘000 ‘000
BN ESRERRR 2 RHEE Number of shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share 2,482,268 2,482,268
hA /R B 6 5 3 £' (E ] BT AE N 2 There were no potential ordinary shares outstanding in both years
AREEA#ELE 2 EBK - presented.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

A Bf
BERRE £ERRG
Moulds,  Furniture, HE HEIR
BT  plantand fixtures and Motor Construction @zt
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
AREFT  ARETT  ARETr AREFr  ARETT  AREFx
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
A COST
RZE—F—-F—H At 1 January 2011 519,062 3,732,337 68,761 23,961 40,692 4,384,803
ME Additions — 2,924 — 2,963 162,838 168,725
BRATRTE Transfer from construction
in progress 44,528 8,860 — — (63,388) =
e Disposals (17,476) (24) - (178) - (17,678)
R=F—%+-A=+-H At 31 December 2011 546,104 3,744,097 68,761 26,746 150,142 4,535,850
ME Additions 3,190 4120 175 2,064 155,861 165,410
BEATRTE Transfer from construction
in progress 104,077 127,367 = = (231,444) =
BRERENE Transfer to investment property (16,808) - — — — (16,808)
e Disposals = (123) = (79) = (202)
RZE-Z4+=A=1-H At 31 December 2012 636,563 3,875,461 68,936 28,731 74,559 4,684,250
HERAR DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
W=F-—%-A-H At 1 January 2011 301,790 2,277,186 59,030 20,428 — 2658434
EENERE Depreciation provided for the year 23,801 261,116 1,931 650 = 287,498
REHHHEORESSE Impairment loss eliminated
on disposal (4,306) — — - — (4,306)
mEHE Eliminated on disposals (13,169) (22) - (161) - (13,352)
R=F-—%F+-A=1-H At 31 December 2011 308,116 2,538,280 60,961 20917 — 2928274
EENERE Depreciation provided for the year 25,265 272,360 1,801 935 = 300,361
L& Eliminated on disposals — (39) — (32) — )
RZE-Z4+-A=+-H At 31 December 2012 333,381 2,810,601 62,762 21,820 — 3228564
REE CARRYING VALUES
RZE——F+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2011 237988 1,205,817 7,800 5,829 150,142 1,607,576
RZB-Z#+-A=1-H At 31 December 2012 303,182 1,084,860 6,174 6,911 74559 1,455,686
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress and specialised production facilities and
moulds, are depreciated on a straight-line basis based on their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual value, as follows:

Estimated Residual

useful lives value

Buildings 20 years 10%

Moulds, plant and machinery, except 5 to 10 years 10%
for specialised production facilities

and moulds
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 10%
Motor vehicles 5 years 10%

Specialised production facilities and moulds included in moulds,
plant and machinery which can be identified in relation to specific
production processes are depreciated by reference to the expected
production volume of these facilities and moulds. Other moulds,
plant and machinery which are for general production purposes are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over 5 to 10 years.

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of moulds and
machinery that has been leased out was RMB457,142,000 (2011:
RMB595,314,000).

As at 31 December 2012, moulds, plant and machinery with original
cost of RMB1,973,499,000 (2011: RMB1,844,170,000) have been
fully depreciated but still in use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:
Medium-term land use right in the PRC

Analysis for reporting purpose as:
Non-current asset
Current asset

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

COST
At 1 January
Transferred from property, plant and equipment

At 31 December

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January
Depreciation provided for the year

At 31 December

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December

—E-CF —E——-F
+ZA=t—-HB +=ZRA=t+-H
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AREFT ANREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
46,192 47,575
44,809 46,192
1,383 1,383
46,192 47,575

Bz Bz
—F--F ZF-F
tT=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H
LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
ARKETFT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
125,962 125,962
16,808 —
142,770 125,962
85,308 79,134
7,495 6,174
92,803 85,308
49,967 40,654
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

The above investment properties are situated in the PRC with
medium lease term and are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
20 years, after taking into account the estimated residual value of
10%.

The Group management is unable to arrive at the fair value of the

investment properties as the comparable market transactions are
infrequent and alternative reliable estimates are not available.

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BMEEE
Technology transfer fees
S Bz
—B-CF —B—-F
t+=A=+-B +t=A=t-H
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
ANEETT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
COST
At 1 January and 31 December 293,987 293,987
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 259,312 250,207
Provided for the year 9,105 9,105
At 31 December 268,417 259,312
CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 25,570 34,675

Payments of technology transfer fees and lump sum royalties
under technology transfer agreements with Isuzu Motors Limited
(“Isuzu”), the substantial shareholder of the Company, are
capitalised as intangible assets and are amortised over license
period ranging from ten years to thirteen years, commencing from
the use of the technologies in production. Continuing royalties
payable to Isuzu under the technology transfer agreements are
charged to the income statement as and when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2012, intangible assets with original cost
of RMB178,589,000 (2011: RMB178,589,000) have been fully
amortised but still in use.

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
Details of the Group’s interest in an associate are as follows:

—F--f ZF--F
t=A=t-A t=A=t-H
31/12/2012  31/12/2011
ABBTT — ARETFZ
RMB'000 RMB'000

Cost of investment in an associate

Unlisted investment 6,333 —
Share of loss of an associate (349) =
5,984 —

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had interests in the following
associate:

rEBEREZ
¢ 4]
Proportion BEZ
of equity SRELL B
EREK FMRIGE FEEEHY interests Portion of
ERER Form of Place of Principal place held by  voting power FEXH
Name of entity entity establishment of operation the Group held Principle activities
THLEL (2F) AL HE HE 25% 25%  HfEE
RERTEEAR  Incorporated PRC PRC Technical

AR ([E+RER
R )

Isuzu Qingling
(Chongging)
Engineering
Co., Ltd.

("Isuzu Qingling
Engineering”)

A +REREMAZENFEAKL °
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development

Isuzu Qingling Engineering was established during the current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont’d)

Summarised financial information

associate is set out below:

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Group’s share of net assets of an associate

Total revenue

Total loss for the year

Group's share of loss of an associate

respect of the Group's
—E-CF —E——-f
+=A=+-B +=A=+-H
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AREFT ANREFTT
RMB'000 RMB’000
26,539 —
2,604 —
23,935 —
5,984 —
BEZ-E-—fF HE-Z—-F
+ZA=+-B +=ZA=+-H
LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AREFT ANREFTT
RMB'000 RMB’000
(1,398) =
(349) =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Qingling Isuzu Engine was established in May 2007, and is mainly
engaged in manufacture of engines and relevant parts. The
registered capital is US$84,260,000, and the Company contributed
US$42,130,000, approximately RMB300,060,000 to Qingling Isuzu
Engine. The Company and Isuzu each held 50% of issued capital
respectively.

Qingling Isuzu Sales was established in September 2008 for
the purpose of selling of Isuzu automobiles and parts. The
registered capital is US$4,600,000, and the Company contributed
US$2,300,000, approximately RMB15,714,000 to Qingling Isuzu
Sales. The Company and Isuzu each held 50% of issued capital
respectively.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group had interests in the
following jointly controlled entities:

s |
BEZBERT
RAEELA
% Proportion BEZ
2EpR of equity ZRELH
Form of SMEIHE FTESEMY interests Portion of
BEERE business Place of Principal place heldby  voting power TEX7
Name of entity structure establishment of operation the group held Principle activities
ERA % e RalipAvE H B B 50% 50%  EENK LA
Qingling Isuzu Engine  Incorporated ~ PRC PRC EP A RIE
Manufacture
of engines and
relevant parts
BRATREE Balipeva HE HE 50% 50% HERTHR
Qingling Isuzu Sales  Incorporated ~ PRC PRC B R

112

Selling of Isuzu
automobiles and
parts
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HZ2012F12A318 I FE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
20, AHEEFERES(H) 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont'd)
AEBRARIEH EEEDRA The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
SEERZUHBERF AL interests in jointly controlled entities attributable to the Group's
BHERER  WHERBEZ2Wm)Han interest therein which is accounted for using proportionate
™ consolidation with the line-by-line reporting format is set out below:
- -3-—-%
2012 2011
AREFT  AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
RYEE Current assets 402,320 299,700
ERBEE Non-current assets 105,907 126,581
nRERE Current liabilities 118,945 44,959
NE&ZR AR A K Revenue recognised in profit or loss 780,797 866,698
REZRNBERNRS Expenses recognised in profit or loss 772,993 847,692
EERN Profit for the year 7,804 19,006
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and
movements thereon during the current year:

M BER

RERE

FERE Impairment of
Allowance for  property, plant st
inventories and equipment Total
AREFT AREFIT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE—F—H—H At 1 January 2011 3,648 774 4,322
SAERE Credit to profit or loss (1,346) (646) (1,992)
RZFE——F+=A=+—H At31 December 2011 2,202 128 2,330
StAER Credit to profit or loss — — —
RZZT—=—F+=A=+—H At 31 December 2012 2,202 128 2,330

RZE—ZF+ZHA=+—8"
REEJHEEBETRAFRNEE
Z AR Rk A 2 18 R B R AR IR B 1B
A AN R#907,000 (=& ——4F
+ZA=+—H8 : &) c ¥ RXHHA
#2  T8ORI SR 2R s A SRR T 2 A 2
HMEEEMERTAELCHIEE
E o

22, WIBHFRBEEZRANRK
b |

R—ZE——F+-_HA=+—80 -
HEEREREERDEE (BIE
TEEEBEERGEMHE) Z2EMNR
18 o
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As at 31 December 2012, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB907,000 (31 December 2011: nil) available for offset against
future profits that may be carried forward within five years. No
deferred tax asset has been recognized in respect of the tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

22. PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF NON-
CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, the balance represented prepayments
for acquisition of non-current assets including the software of
production management system.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

23. INVENTORIES

—g--§ g%
t=A=+-8 +=A=t-A
31/12/2012  31/12/2011
AEETT  ARETT

RMB'000 RMB’000

Raw materials 498,567 665,704
Work in progress 45,305 83,917
Finished goods 28,674 155,260
827,546 904,881

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(@) At the end of the reporting period, the balance of trade and
other receivables includes amounts due from Qingling Group,
subsidiaries of Qingling Group, Qingling Isuzu Engine, Qingling
Isuzu Sales, and Isuzu Qingling Engineering as follows:

—E-CF —E——f
tT=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H
31/12/2012  31/12/201M1
ANREFTT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

Qingling Group 514,241 610,394
Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 93,890 41,019
Qingling Isuzu Engine 58,533 —
Qingling Isuzu Sales 541 37
Isuzu Qingling Engineering 2,504 —

669,709 651,450

Receivables from Qingling Group of RMB514,241,000 (2011:
RMB610,394,000) were in trade nature, aged within 6 months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(@) At the end of the reporting period, the balance of trade and
other receivables includes amounts due from Qingling Group,
subsidiaries of Qingling Group, Qingling Isuzu Engine, Qingling
Isuzu Sales, and Isuzu Qingling Engineering as follows:
(Cont’d)

Receivables from subsidiaries of Qingling Group were in trade
nature, of which RMB71,771,000 were aged within 6 months (2011:
RMB26,533,000), RMB1,406,000 (2011: RMB14,486,000) were
aged over 6 months to 1 year and RMB20,713,000 (2011: nil) were
aged over 1 year.

Receivables from Qingling Isuzu Engine were in trade nature, of
which RMB58,533,000 were aged within 3 months (2011: nil).

Receivables from Qingling Isuzu Sales were in trade nature,
of which RMB541,000 were aged within 3 months (2011:
RMB37,000).

Receivables from Isuzu Qingling Engineering were in trade nature,
of which RMB2,504,000 were aged within 3 months (2011: nil).
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24, FEWBRA R H it FE WA 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

(%)

(b) MImEHER  AKREIZRA (b) At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of trade
SERBEPHREE receivables net of allowance for doubt debts presented based
AM(EE B KR A M on invoice date of the Group at the end of the reporting period,

HE) 25 2 YRR - 1
Br RERERR - Rk D a0

which approximated the respective revenue recognition dates
is as follows:

™

—E-CF —E——-f
+=ZR=t-B +t=A=+-H
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
ANESFr ANESTFr
RMB’000 RMB'000
3fEAUA Within 3 months 677,726 703,286
3Z6fE A Between 3 to 6 months 29,410 1,388
72121848 Between 7 to 12 months 1,427 5,273
1225 Between 1 to 2 years 27,621 15,338
26 Over 2 years 1,400 561

MR RERERHR 2 EUER T Trade receivables less allowance
for doubtful debts 737,584 725,846
H b IR Other receivables 7,013 18,500
FEINEER Prepaid value-added tax 16,574 50,745
BITHIE Prepayments 52,036 115,241
813,207 910,332
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for doubt debt presented based
on invoice date of the Group at the end of the reporting period,
which approximated the respective revenue recognition dates
is as follows: (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2012, trade and other receivables of
RMB17,855,000 (2011: RMB36,451,000) and RMB20,000 (2011:
RMB21,000) were denominated in Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and
United State Dollar ("USD") respectively, other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an external
credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. 99% (2011:
99%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have the best credit scoring attributable under the external credit
scoring system used by the Group.

The credit period granted on sales of goods is 3 to 6 months.
Included in prepayments is an amount of approximately

RMB44,370,000 (2011: RMB105,209,000) related to the advance
payment to independent suppliers of steel as of 31 December 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(c) At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of trade
receivables of the Group which are past due but not impaired,
net of allowances, is as follows:

—E-C-f —E--fF
t=A=t-B t=A=+-H
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AEETT  AERETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

Overdue by:
1 to 6 months 1,427 5,273
6to 1 year 27,621 15,338
Over 1 year 1,400 561
30,448 21,172

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB30,448,000 (2011:
approximately RMB21,172,000) which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss, of which RMB22,119,000 (2011: approximately
RMB18,656,000) is due from subsidiaries of Qingling Group. The
Group does not consider any risk on subsequent collections, and all
of these receivables are expected to be settled in the coming year.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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24, FEWBRA R H it FE WA 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

(&)
REREFBZEEH Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
“g-=f =—B--f
+=ZA=+t-B +=ZA=1+-AH
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
FENRFLRER Balance at beginning and end of the year 4,595 4,595
REEREHBRBBEHRABARK Allowance for doubtful debts are provided for individually impaired
4595000 L(ZF——F : AR trade receivables with an aggregate balance of RMB4,595,000
4,595,000 7T ) %8 3R B 2 & W (2011: RMB4,595,000) which are in financial difficulties

R (RERNYRREZEE) -

25, EWEE 25. BILLS RECEIVABLE
R|EHPR  AEEB 2 EKE At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of bills
BEEREDTOT receivable of the Group is as follows:
—B-CF —B—-F
tT=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
MEAUA Within 1 month 888,313 728,789
122{8 A Between 1 to 2 months 450,380 507,909
2Z3{HA Between 2 to 3 months 370,191 318,981
4Z6(E A Between 4 to 6 months 856,154 859,759
2,565,038 2,415,438
FEWERBRABRITEALES All the above bills receivable are guaranteed by banks and their
HAEH N FI0KE180K expiry dates ranged from 30 to 180 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

25. BILLS RECEIVABLE (Cont’d)

During the year, the Group discounted a bill receivable amounted
to RMB5,760,000 with full recourse to a bank for cash proceeds of
RMB5,631,000 (2011:nil). If the bill receivable is not paid at maturity,
the bank has the right to request the Group to pay the unsettled
balance. The financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements.

As the Group has not transferred the significant risk and reward
relating to the bill receivable, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amount of the receivable, and recognised the cash received
as a liability (Note 28(b)).

26. BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY MORE
THAN THREE MONTHS

The amounts represented bank fixed deposits with original maturity
of 6 to 12 months and carried fixed interest rate. Their respective
interest rates are ranging from 2.75% to 3.575% (2011: 2.25% to
3.50%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2012, fixed deposits amounting to
RMB4,965,000 (2011: RMB8,128,000) were denominated in USD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The market interest rate of bank balances is 0.35% (2011: 0.50%)
per annum. The bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

“E--F “E2—-F

T=A T=F

=t-A =t-A

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

ARETT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

usb 7,893 8,786
JPY 26,787 11,648
European Dollar (“EUR") 10,293 4,859
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") 31 41
Great British Pound (“GBP") 3 3
45,007 25,337

28. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

(@) At the end of the reporting period, the balances of trade
payables included the amounts due to Isuzu, subsidiaries of
Qingling Group and Qingling Isuzu Engine as follows:

=5 = =
+=A=t-8 +=A=+-A
31/12/2012  31/12/2011

ARETT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Isuzu 103,746 119,219
Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 19,918 41,057
Qingling Isuzu Engine — 39,668
123,664 199,944

These amounts are in trade nature, unsecured, interest free and the
credit period granted on purchases of materials is 3 to 6 months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

28. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of trade,
bills and other payables of the Group is as follows:

—E2--F —E2—-F

+=ZRA=+-B t=ZA=t-H

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

AEETT  ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 3 months 1,127,023 1,678,106
Between 3 to 6 months 362,658 252,248
Between 7 to 12 months 38,755 46,418
Over 12 months 31,501 47,946
Trade and bills payables 1,559,937 2,024,718
Selling expenses payables 233,307 295,166
Value added tax payables 76,271 510
Discounted bill financing 5,760 —
Other payables 56,863 39,514
Advance from customers 164,461 200,049
2,096,599 2,559,957

The balance of discounted bill financing represented bank borrowing
obtained in relation to a discounted bill receivable (note 25).

The balance of advance from customers at the end of the
reporting period represents the amount received in advance for the
subsequent sales of trucks and vehicles and automobile parts and
accessories.

At the end of the reporting period, trade and other payables
amounted to RMB103,926,000 (2011: RMB129,012,000) are
denominated in JPY.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

29. SHARE CAPITAL

“Z2-—-%-8-R-
—E——f
+=ZA=+-BK
—E-—_F
+ZA=1+—H
01/01/2011,
31/12/2011

and 31/12/2012
AREFT
RMB'000

Registered, issued and fully paid 2,482,268

RIEE
Number of shares
—E——%-8-8-
—E--fF
+=A=+-BR
—E-—F
+=A=t+-H
01/01/2011,
31/12/2011

and 31/12/2012
F &

‘000

Shares of RMB1 each
— Domestic shares
— H shares

1,243,616
1,238,652

2,482,268

Domestic shares are ordinary shares subscribed for and credited
as fully paid up in Renminbi by the PRC government and/or entities
established in the PRC. H shares are ordinary shares subscribed for
in Hong Kong Dollar and credited as fully paid up in Renminbi by
persons other than the PRC government and/or entities established
in the PRC.

Domestic shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with
each other. Domestic shares are not freely traded in the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

There were no changes in the registered, issued and fully paid share
capital of the Company during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained
profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure from
time to time. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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HZ2012F12A318 I FE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
31. €T A 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) €EWMITEEHR (a) Categories of financial instruments

—E-CF —E——f
T=A=1t-R t=A=t+-*H
31/12/2012  31/12/2011
ANREFTT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

SREE Financial assets
B REWE Loan and receivables
TR X Trade receivables 737,584 725,846
Hib IR Other receivables 7,013 18,500
ES Bills receivable 2,565,038 2,415,438
[RE|H BB A=A A 2 RITTFR Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months 2,749,331 3,326,687
ROTEBERE Bank balances and cash 1,097,921 848,928
7,156,887 7,355,399
TRAE Financial liabilities
B Amortised cost
ENRRRERRE Trade and bills payables 1,659,937 2,024,718
WREERE Discounted bill financing 5,760 -
BRHEER Selling expenses payables 233,307 295,166
HA R 5IE Other payables 56,363 39,514

1,855,867 2,359,398

126



e B Wk MR

HZE2012612A31B ILEE

31. €@ I A
(b) MBEEBEEEBERBEXE

AEENTECRTABRTERE
Wik o e Bt e W kR - RIRR
B RIBABE=EAZRIT
TR -RIOTEHREES  EBHE
K EBNRE RRRERER
HiENFB(EREMNHEEER
REMEMNKIEA) ZEERMTE
MEFBREENMETRRE - &
ZEeMTAEAENARERET
SRR (MXREREINERR)
EERRNMRBDES AR - 20
5% R e B BRI
X -AKEHSEZEFRBRNEE
SEHEERAEZFRARZ A
VTEEANESH EEERAEE
REREERR #BRESEE
METEERE -

% E B

(i) SNE/E

AEBLZHEERETINEESE -
A i ESINER R - NREBER A
SMVER B NS B I E A E
MITERNE FINERR - BE
) B E RN AT R INVER

& o
PA

127

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bills receivable, bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months, bank balances and cash, trade and bills
payables, discounted bill financing and other payables (including
selling expenses payables and other payables). Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. There has
been no significant change to the Group's exposure to these risks
or the manner in which it manages and measures these risks. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk

Several entities of the Group have foreign currency purchases,
sales, which expose the Group to currency risk. The Group
considers the currency risk insignificant and does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure to currency risk.
The Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign currency rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Currency risk (Cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities that are subject to currency
risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

EE af

Assets Liabilities
“B--f -5 CZB--f CZB--§
T=A T=A TR T=A
Eir=FE =t-H =t-H ==k
31/12/2012  31/12/2011  31/12/2012  31/12/2011
ABEFT  ARETFT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

usDh 12,878 16,935 = =
JPY 44,642 48,099 103,926 129,012
EUR 10,293 4,859 = =
HKD 31 41 — —
GBP 3 3 = =

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuations in USD, JPY
and EUR. The management assessed the risk of fluctuations in HKD
and GBP is insignificant and did not present the sensitivity analysis
in the RMB against HKD and GBP.



e B Wk MR

HZE2012612A31B ILEE

31. €@ I A

(b) BMBEBEEEFEREX
(&)

%5 a2 ()
(i) SMEmE (&)
BRRE T ()

TRALAEEZARE L X
7T BEMEITI{ES % & M &
BE -b%NRAETEEBRAEHE
P B i 5 HIME R B B B A 2 SRR
Bix KREEBHIMNEERX
BEMWEES MG - HRED
MEBRRERAREENIINESES
®IEEB  UERHBREAR®B X
7t -+ BB RETE R BIR5%m F
HEFEE - T (BB EHRKRE
ARBHEZET  BEEBTHE
5% ifh 28 25 £ P R 5 12 28 A1) Ok 4>)
B HMARBEEET - BE R
BTz E5% @ Rl@ B F AR
HBABFELERNEE -

ISRVA
Ba

HE
BT

129

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Currency risk (Cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
in the exchange rate of RMB against USD, JPY and EUR. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the period end for a 5% change in RMB against USD, JPY and
EUR. A (negative) positive number below indicates (decrease)
increase in post-tax profit for the year, respectively, where the RMB
strengthen 5% against USD, JPY and EUR. For a 5% weakening of
the RMB against USD, JPY and EUR, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year.

=g-=f -%—-%
2012 2011
ARETT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

Profit or loss
usb (547) (720)
JPY 2,519 3439
EUR (437) (207)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest risk relates preliminary to bank
deposits with original maturity more than three months carried
at fixed interest rates. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of deposit interest rate
arising from the Group’s bank balances carried at variable rate.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to bank balances carried prevailing deposit interest rate
at the end of the reporting period. 0.27% (2011: 0.27%) increase
or decrease in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 0.27% higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2012 would increase/decrease by approximately
2,520,000 (2011: increase/decrease by RMB1,948,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
bank balances.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits
and monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debtors. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debtor at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on amounts due from related parties is limited
because the Group also periodically evaluated the related parties’
credit rating and these related parties credit rating is high.

There is concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
parties, which have been disclosed in note 24 and the Group
periodically evaluated the related parties credit rating and also look
for more non-related party customers. Apart from that, the Group
does not have significant concentration of credit risk on trade and
other receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counter-
parties and customers. The credit risk on liquid fund which are
deposited with several banks is limited because the Group's bank
deposits and bank balances are deposited with authorised banks in
the PRC with high credit-ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on
cash generated from operating activities as a significant source of
liquidity. Trade receivables and bills receivables can be received
within six months based on the earliest date on which the Group
can require payments and bank balances can be drawn on demand.
The directors believe that the Group will have sufficient funds
available to meet its financial obligations in the foreseeable future
based on management working capital forecast.

The following tables detail the Group’'s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

bS]
ReNEsE FAZEEE
SMIER 3MEAZIE Total Carrying
Less than 123f8A 3 months  undiscounted amount

1month  1-3 months to1year  cashflows  atyearend
ANEETT  AREFT AGEFT  ARETT  AREFr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

At 31 December 2012
Trade and bills payables 623,371 674,99 261,570 1,559,937 1,559,937
Selling expenses payables,

discounted bill financing

and other payables 98,503 108,424 89,003 295,930 295,930

721,874 783,420 350,573 1,865,867 1,855,867

At 31 December 2011
Trade and bills payables 704,487 952,347 367,884 2,024,718 2,024,718
Selling expenses payables

and other payables 133,601 109,132 91,947 334,680 334,680

838,088 1,061,479 459,831 2,359,398 2,359,398

(c) Fair values

The fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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32. REFRS &8 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

NEBRMBEES SRR E The Group's related party balances are set out in notes 24(a) and
24(a) 2. 28(a) ° 28(a).

REEAN  AEEEBESET During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions

THRS with related parties:
(i) EERSERAENEBIAM (i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
x5
a EBEREERELKS (a)  Qingling Group and certain subsidiaries of Qingling Group
ETHBAABRUAT (Exclude the following subsidiaries set at in (b), (c), (d),
(b) ~ (c) ~ (d) ~ (e) ~ (f) (e), (f) and (g) below)
R@)FE3 2B A
aoh)
XEEHE Types of transactions
H2-%--F BE-E--F
+=A=+-B +t=A=t-H
LEE LFEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
ARETFT AEEFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
HERSR Sales of chassis 1,557,371 1,185,397
HESBUHRENH Sales of parts and raw materials for
AEEERBETI A the manufacture of automobile parts (Note 1) 84,383 90,306
BEABSHHE([HE2) Purchases of automobile parts (Note 2) 107,243 220,106
HERET T Expenses for renting warehouse 6,040 6,040
AERET T Expenses for renting equipment 1,380 1,380
REES T Service fee expense 31 31

Bl - sEAZZE—=F 2 AR%5,891,000

Note 1: Included in the 2012 amount are 5,891,000 (2011: RMB6,837,000), 66,186,000

(2011: RMB69,909,000) and 12,285,000 (2011: RMB13,481,000) representing
the sales of parts and raw materials to EERERTEMINEHEERR AR
(“Qingling Jijia"), EEERAE EEEEFRAE (“Qingling Shangzhuang”)
and EEFERLRTERRIHAEMRAT ("Qingling Chassis”) respectively during
the current year. Qingling Jijia, Qingling Shangzhuang and Qingling Chassis are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Qingling Group.

(=T ——4F : AR¥®6,837,000
L) © A R # 66,186,000 T (= &
— — % : A K % 69,909,000 jt)
%A R#12,2850007 (=8 ——
& . AR #13,481,0007T) % Bl A&
ARE AN R E B T 85 VR B A 0 36 o Y
EHERAB([EREM])  ZEEE
$RRBE EHBEAR AR ([ERE
HOREEERTERBBRAER
AR ([ERER ] HEDHREREM
BrEmE BREN - Bt EER
BREBHEEREEZZ2ENE

AA] e
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(i) EERSERAENEAIARAN
X5 (&)
(@) (&)
Bagz2: st AZ 2 —ZF 2 AR

29,462,000 (=T ——4F : AR
49,102,0007t) + A K # 10,521,000
T (ZZ——%F : AR¥70,450,000
7T) & A R # 58,249,000 7T (= &
——% : AR¥99,151,0007%) % 5l
RAFENRESRHEN B EER
EREBRBEATED G -

BRI ET1Z2Fat AZ 28I - &
HRRXHGETEREEEREE 2R

5 o

b) BREEZHBARE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont'd)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries

(Cont'd)

(@) (Cont'd)

Note 2: Included in the 2012 amount are RMB29,462,000 (2011: RMB49,102,000),

RMB10,521,000 (2011:

RMB70,450,000)

and RMBb58,249,000

(2011:

RMB99,151,000) representing the purchases of automobile parts from Qingling

Jijia, Qingling Shangzhuang and Qingling Chassis respectively during the

current year.

Other than the amounts included in Note 1 and 2, the remaining

transaction amounts arise from the transactions with Qingling

Group.

XEEHE

BE BT

HE T R
NBEERETEMT

&R
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B
EERBERRAA

(b) EEEREEARAR], asubsidiary of Qingling Group

Types of transactions

BE-%--F BE-Z--F
T=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H

LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

AREFT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Purchases of automobile parts 21,522 27,744
Sales of parts and raw materials for the

manufacture of automobile parts 31,805 22,381

Expenses for renting equipment — 2,623
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
(Cont’d)

() EEERBEER AR, asubsidiary of Qingling Group

Types of transactions

BE-Z--F BE-%—-F

t=A=t-8 t=A=t1-A

LEE LLFE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

AEETT  ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Purchases of automobile parts 49,677 63,877
Sales of parts and raw materials for the

manufacture of automobile parts 23,342 4,412

Expenses for renting equipment 23,296 13,769

(d) EEERERERAF, a subsidiary of Qingling Group

Types of transactions

HB2-%--F BE-ZE--F

+=HA=+-B +t=B=t-H

LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

ARETT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Purchases of automobile parts 106,183 452,427
Sales of parts and raw materials for the

manufacture of automobile parts 3,320 301,243

Purchases of equipment 2,390 2,910
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
(Cont’d)

(e) EEEHBHEERFABRAR, a subsidiary of Qingling
Group

Types of transactions

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011

AREFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Purchases of automobile parts 63,586 71,267
Sales of parts and raw materials for the

manufacture of automobile parts 12,402 14,827

() EEEHBEERAR, asubsidiary of Qingling Group

Types of transactions

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011

AEEFT ANEEFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Purchases of automobile parts 74,925 93,148
Sales of parts and raw materials for the

manufacture of automobile parts 3,220 5,512
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HZ2012F12A318 I FE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
32. MEARS & (H) 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont’d)
(i) HEREEREMBATHN (i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
X5 (&) (Cont’d)
(90 EREEZWEBARE () EEERBIEERAR, asubsidiary of Qingling Group
EERERARAA
XEEHE Types of transactions
BE-3--f BE-E--F
+ZA=+t-B +=ZA=1+-AH
LEE LFEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AREFT  ANEEFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
BERETHMH Purchases of automobile parts 14,053 26,466
HESBHEREM AR EE TBT M Sales of parts and raw materials for the
manufacture of automobile parts 5,166 4,421
(i) EETRHORS (ii) Transactions with Isuzu
XEEHE Types of transactions
B2-%--F BE-E--F
+=ZA=t—-B +=A=1+-H
LEE LLEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AREFT  AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BERETHMHT Purchases of parts and components 1,123,305 1,462,985
HECEREMERELNERAEE Royalties on sales of trucks and other vehicles 66,644 86,814
HES DR EMBIAEEESET D Sales of accessory sets and other automobile
parts and components 43,422 68,034
WEEEE ZBAR Prepayments for acquisition of an intangible asset 17,609 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont'd)

(iii) Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine, a jointly
controlled entity of the Company

Types of transactions

BE-®--F BE-%—-F

+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H

LFEE LFE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

ARETT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Sales of accessory sets and raw materials 1,048,633 1,044,009

Purchases of automobile parts 1,474,649 1,655,454

Rental income for investment properties 12,360 12,360

Rental income for moulds and tooling equipment 50,209 54,648

Consolidated services income 2,763 3,039
Above transactions represented the total amounts before

elimination of the Group’s interests of 50% in the jointly controlled
entity based on proportionate consolidation.

(iv) Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Sales, a jointly controlled

entity of the Company

Types of transactions

LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

AREFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Sales of trucks and automobile parts 9,825 92

Rental income for investment properties 1,464 —

Consolidated services income 500 —
Above transactions represented the total amounts before

BE-%--F BE-ZE--F
T=A=1t-R t=A=t-H

elimination of the Group's interests of 50% in the jointly controlled
entity based on proportionate consolidation.



e B Wk MR

HZE2012612A31B ILEE

32. BEFXS HEHRE)

(v) EFEEMRFEEERN
X5/ &k

AEEBLEEBHLCEREB A
TEXHBERNEESHERS
TRl HAZEHREAFEN
ER((RNFEEEEDNESE -
AN AEBAR T AP B BT E
HOWEREEETRASERQ A
By — B0 5 o Bk b SC()ER FT 4% &
BEREEREMNBARETAR
S50 2N & B 78 81 E BT AR
ERBEEBER - ARAEER
BORASEEZZRMHEBE
BIAETHEBRRZME 25
B EEEBBERBILE=T -

HEMBNEEERBNE AR
5/ BEHmT

BEHHE

EU

140

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(v) Transactions/balances with other government-related
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government
(“government-related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is
part of a larger group of companies under Qingling Group which is
controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries disclosed in section (i) above,
the Group also conducts businesses with other government-related
entities. The directors of the Company consider those government-
related entities are independent third parties so far as the Group's
business transactions with them are concerned.

Material transactions/balances with other government-related
entities are as follow:

BE-B--F HE-EZ-—-F

+=A=1-B +=A=1-8

LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

ARETFT AEEFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade sales 1,295,977 2,373,845
Trade purchases 1,689,998 2,417,918




e B Wk MR

HZE2012612A31B ILEE

32. BEFXS HEHRE)

(v) EFEEMRFEEERN
X5/ &t (&)

ENEMHTREERNE S AR

EREMHAREERNE 2 kAR

AN AREBRBEERBBIED
HETERFAEERNRITR
MHBEBETZERS  BEA
A BR 7 K e 7 B KT AN 3RIR
MEARER  BEREM K
RITMERS - ER W FRITR
SFHEE AR EEFRREL
ERHELEEE -

BREXHBEEEIN  ARBES
R BEMBTHEBRERET
MX S AEEONERMS LD
BEX-

141

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont'd)

(v) Transactions/balances with other government-related

entities in the PRC (Cont’d)

—E--F —E2—-F
T=A=1t-R t=A=t+-*H
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AREFTT AEEFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
Trade and other balances due to other
government-related entities 173,319 288,850
Trade and other balances due from other
government-related entities 403,803 501,531

In addition, the Group has entered

into various transactions,

including utilities services and surcharges/taxes charged by the

PRC government, and deposits and borrowings and other general

banking facilities with certain banks and financial institutions which

are government-related entities in its ordinary course of business.

In view of the nature of these banking transactions, the directors of

the Company are of the opinion that separate disclosure would not

be meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are of the

opinion that transactions with government-related entities are not

significant to the Group’s operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont'd)

(vi) Compensation of directors and key management

personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year are as follows:

“R=t- “RA=t-H

LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

ARETFT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Short-term benefits 2,961 3,035
Post-employment benefits 148 121
3,109 3,156

33. COMMITMENTS

(@) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

capital commitments:

—E—_—F
+TZA=1+-H
31/12/2012
AEETT
RMB’000
Contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements
in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, and intangible assets 120,053
Approved by the directors but not contracted
in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, and intangible assets 131,147

e

tT=A=t+-H

31/12/2011

ARETT

RMB'000

95,499

133,224
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HZ2012F12A318 I FE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
34 KREHE 34. OPERATING LEASE
AEBERAEA The Group as lessee

=5 =
T=A=1t-B t=A=t+-*H
31/12/2012  31/12/2011
ABRTT  ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000
FARBECERNEN 2 mEREHIE Minimum lease payment paid under operating
lease during the year:
ES Premises 9,347 13,769
& Equipment 25,522 15,087
34,869 28,856
AR HHA R - AN E B AR 5 7 A At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
THIR B HY 2 Al sy ae & 78 4 future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
T 7B 7 WE SN R R R K TR & Z0E leases which fall due as follows:
m
—E--F —E2—-F
TZA=t-A t=A=1-*H
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
ARETT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
FARBEERNAN 2 RERERE Minimum lease payment paid under

operating lease during the year:

(3 Within one year 31,323 33,925
F2EEFELF (BEEEME) In the second to fifth year inclusive 4,054 38,062
5,377 71,987

143



e B Wk MR

HZE2012612A31B ILEE

34, EEHEE )
AEMEREBA(R)

REMEFREASBERRES
TEEREAEREXNNES -
HHMEHEFEAER —FE=
F-HETEHNERBEHED -

AEBMERHAA

RBEHHRR AREEERFZ
ARZFEREXAAESOWT ¢

1ER
FIFEESF (BEEEME)

TRRRMEETLHEET N
REEREREKERT +RED
BEEBERATREEZES -

BRIA LB AEER RS H
HRERBEEMBRE T AIHEY
X BEARBLEREVENR
BHE 2 KRR REHEE %R

o

144

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

34. OPERATING LEASE (Cont’d)
The Group as lessee (Cont’d)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its warehouses and production facilities. Leases
are negotiated for an average term of one to three years. Some
contracts have been renewed during the reporting period.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

-g--§ -8--%
+=A=f-8 +=A=t-A
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
ARBFT — AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Within one year 29,976 51,015
In the second to fifth year inclusive 4,732 99,340
34,708 150,355

The amount represents rentals receivable from Qingling Isuzu
Engine and Qingling Isuzu Sales for certain of its land and buildings
and production facilities.

Other than the above, the Group does not have any other
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases of property, plant and equipment and
investment property at the end of the reporting period.
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35. FEMBAT

RZE——F+-_A=+—8XK
—E——%F+ZA=+—BAA
A

WM BARFEBNT :

WELAREE

Name of subsidiary

EERREABRAR
([EREL])
("Qingling Moulds")

BERRRMRL
( TBSREHRL] )
("Qingling Technical
Center”)

FRZEM B QAL R BETEM

BERFEF
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ERES-{ETE
Country of
registration
and operation

HE — g
BY CX s
PRC — Sino

foreign equity
joint venture

FE — Fgh
BEREDE
PRC — Sino

foreign equity
joint venture

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

ERERE
Form of
business
structure

AL

Incorporated

Baiipava

Incorporated

ERER
Registered
capital

38,166,600 7T
US$38,166,600

29,980,000 7T
1US$29,980,000

the year.

31 December 2011 are as follows:

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31

ARFEREEN
REROEAL

Proportion of ownership intersts
directly held by the Company

“E-ZfF
2012

50.56%

—g——%
201

50.56%

December 2012 and

FERR

Principal activities

HESERE R HEA

Production of moulds
for the manufacture of
automobile parts

AR ES
Not yet commenced
business

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

OF

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

—E-CF —E——-F
+=ZA=+t—-B +=A=t+-H
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,325,808 1,451,645
Prepaid lease payments 44,809 46,192
Investment properties 49,967 40,654
Intangible assets 20,961 29,370
Investments in subsidiaries 285,073 285,073
Investments in an associate 6,333 —
Interests in jointly controlled entities 315,774 315,774
Deferred tax assets 2,330 2,330
Prepayments for acquisition of
non-current assets 20,294 —
2,071,349 2,171,038
Current assets
Inventories 692,071 864,129
Trade and other receivables 856,622 951,966
Bills receivables 2,564,134 2,408,373
Prepaid lease payments 1,383 1,383
Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months 2,310,800 2,890,800
Bank balances and cash 758,329 525,177
7,183,339 7,641,828
Current liabilities
Amount due to subsidiaries 36,591 35,642
Trade, bills and other payables 2,044,571 2,576,017
Tax liabilities 18,215 30,495
2,099,377 2,642,054
Net current assets 5,083,962 4,999,774
Total assets less current liabilities 7,155,311 7,170,812
Capital and reserves
Share capital 2,482,268 2,482,268
Share premium and reserves 4,673,043 4,688,644
Total equity 7,155,311 7,170,812
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

36. BEARAMBMRRREN 36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

&R (8

RBEHR FEAN

NG

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Information about movements in reserves of the Company at the

FHMERBIE end of the reporting period includes:
REZEE
Movements in reserves
EELAES
Statutory
RAEE ZxDES surplus  REEF
Share Capital reserve  Retained -
premium reserve fund profits Total
ANREFT ANEEFT AREFT AREFT AREFL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
R-%--%-A-H At 1 January 2011 1,764,905 572,210 803,132 1,467,516 4,607,763
FERFREGEEYE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year — — — 329,008 329,008
FENR Appropriation for the year - — 34,906 (34,906) —
IRZE-SERERE 2010 final dividend paid — — —  (248227)  (248227)
RZZ--%+-F=1-H At 31 December 2011 1,764,905 572,210 838,038 1,513,391 4,688,544
FEENREAEYE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year — — — 282,370 282,370
FEAR Appropriation for the year — — 28,834 (28,834) —
AR FEARRH RS Unclaimed H shares dividend of prior year — — — 1 1
INZE-—ERERE 2011 final dividend paid - - — (297872 (297,872)
RZB-——4+t-A=1-H At 31 December 2012 1764905 572210 866,872  1469,066 4,673,043
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Financial summary — in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Revenue

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of
the Company
Non-controlling
interests

BE+T-A=t—-HLEE

For the Year ended 31 December

SRR SRR SRR CERAF CEENR

2012

2011

2010

2009 2008

ABRTT NRBTT ARETT ARETT ARE T
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

6,185,810 8,148,839 6,107,141

4,489,968 3,960,818

347,643 416,932 355411 292,614 205,614
(61,970)  (60,782)  (62,088)  (57,354)  (26,295)
295,673 356,150 303,323 235,160 179,319
290,701 353,658 301,666 240,827 175,159

4,972 2,492 1,657 (5,667) 4,160
295,673 356,150 303,323 235,160 179,319
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Financial summary — in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (Cont’d)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Attributable to:
Owners of
the Company
Non-controlling
interests

R+t=A=t-8H

As at 31 December
SRR SRR SRR CERAF CEENR
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
ANEBTFT ARETFT ARETT ARETFT ARKTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

9,669,066 10,139,076 10,387,266 9,077,170 8,403,302
(2,117,689) (2,593,581) (2,949,487) (1,741,887) (1,178,486)

7,541,377 7,545,495 7,437,779 7,335,283 7,224,816

7,246,383 7,253,653 7,148,122 7,045,036 6,928,321

294,994 291942 289,657 290,247 296,495

7,541,377 7,545,495 7,437,779 7,335,283 7,224,816
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PROPOSAL FOR APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT
FOR THE YEAR OF 2012

In accordance with the pertinent regulations and based on the actual
situation of the Company, the board of directors of the Company
resolved that the proposed appropriation of profit for the year of
2012 be as follows:

1. The appropriation of net profits after taxation shall be: 10% for
Statutory Reserve Fund, 0% for Statutory Public Benefit Fund
(Note) and 90% for profit available for distribution.

2. A final dividend of RMBO0.10 per share in cash is proposed.
Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual
general meeting, the proposed final dividend is expected
to be paid to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of shareholders on Tuesday, 18 June 2013. Further
announcement will be made as to the exact form of payment.

Note: In accordance with the amendment to the Company Law of PRC on 27
October 2005 effective from 1 January 2006, and pursuant to the Company'’s
articles of association and the resolutions of the board of directors of the
Company, the Company decided not to accrue for Statutory Public Benefit
Fund from the year of 2006.

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
21 March 2013
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting (the
“"AGM") of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company”) will be held
at the Conference Hall, 1st Floor of the Company's Office Building,
1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") on Wednesday, 5 June 2013
at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To consider and approve the report of the board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”) for the year of 2012.

2. To consider and approve the report of the supervisory
committee of the Company for the year of 2012.

3. To consider and approve the audited financial statements and
the independent auditor’s report of the Company for the year
of 2012.

4.  To consider and approve the proposal for appropriation of profit
of the Company for the year of 2012.

5. To re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP (formerly known as Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu CPA Ltd.) and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
Company’s PRC and international auditors respectively for the
year of 2013 and to authorize the Board to determine their
remunerations.

By Order of the Board
Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
WU Nianqing

Company Secretary

Chongging, the PRC,
19 April 2013
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Note:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Any shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting mentioned above is
entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote at the meeting on his/
her behalf in accordance with the articles of association of the Company. A proxy

need not be a shareholder of the Company.

In order to be valid, the proxy form and, if such proxy form is signed by a
person under a power of attorney or other authority on behalf of the appointer, a
notarially certified copy of that power of attorney or authority shall be deposited
at the legal address of the Company at 1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo
District, Chongging, the PRC (in the case of proxy form of holder of domestic
shares) or at the Company’s H Share Registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited,
at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (in
the case of proxy form of holders of H Shares) not less than 24 hours before the
time for holding the meeting or 24 hours before the time appointed for taking the

poll.

Shareholders or their proxies shall produce their identity documents when

attending the meeting.

To ascertain the shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of shareholders of the Company will be closed from Monday, 6 May
2013 to Wednesday, 5 June 2013 (both dates inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the AGM, all duly completed transfer forms relating to H shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s H Share
Registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 3 May 2013.

Shareholders whose names appear on the register of shareholders of the
Company on Monday, 6 May 2013 are entitled to attend and vote at the

meeting.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Shareholders who intend to attend the meeting shall complete and lodge the
reply slip for attending the meeting at the Company's legal address at 1 Xiexing
Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging, the PRC on or before
Thursday, 16 May 2013. The reply slip may be delivered to the Company by
hand, by post, by cable or by fax (at fax no.: (86) 23-68830397).

Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the AGM, the proposed
final dividend will be payable to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of shareholders on Tuesday, 18 June 2013. To ascertain the
shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the register of
shareholders of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 11 June 2013 to
Tuesday, 18 June 2013 (both dates inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
duly completed transfer forms relating to H shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company's H Share Registrars, Hong
Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
10 June 2013.

The AGM is not expected to take more than half a day. Shareholders or their
proxies attending the AGM shall be responsible for their own travel and

accommodation expenses.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), all votes of the
shareholders at the meeting will be taken by poll except where the chairman, in
good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands and the Company will
announce the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under rule 13.39(5) of

the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this notice, the Board comprises 11 directors, of which Mr.
WU Yun, Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI, Mr. GAO Jianmin, Mr. Makoto TANAKA,
Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA, Mr. LIU Guangming and Mr. PAN Yong are executive
directors and Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. XU Bingjin and Mr. LIU

Tianni are independent non-executive directors.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

WU Yun (Chairman)

Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (Vice Chairman)
GAQ Jianmin

Makoto TANAKA (General Manager)
Ryozo TSUKIOKA

LIU Guangming

PAN Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni

SUPERVISORS

MIN Qing (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
ZHOU Hong

LEI Bin

COMPANY SECRETARY
PRC: WU Nianging
Hong Kong: TUNG Tat Chiu Michael

AUDIT COMMITTEE

SONG Xiaojiang (Committee Chairman)
LONG Tao

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
SONG Xiaojiang (Committee Chairman)
LIU Guangming

LONG Tao

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
WU Yun (Committee Chairman)
LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni

CORPORATE INFORMATION AVAILABLE AT
Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

LEGAL ADDRESS

1 Xiexing Cun

Zhongliangshan

Jiulongpo District

Chongaing

the People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suite 4901, 49th Floor

Office Tower, Convention Plaza

1 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.gingling.com.cn

H SHARE REGISTRARS
Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

H SHARE LISTING PLACE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1122
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China, Chongging Branch

Bank of Communications, Chongging Branch

The Commercial and Industrial Bank of China, Chongging Branch
The Commercial and Industrial Bank of China, Zhongliangshan Office

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
8/F, Deloitte Tower

The Towers, Oriental Plaza

1 East Chang An Avenue

Beijing 100738

the People’s Republic of China

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
as to Hong Kong laws:

Tung & Co.

Office 1601, 16/F

LHT Tower

31 Queen’'s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo
26/F, Jardine House

1 Connaught Place
Central, Hong Kong

as to PRC laws:

Haiwen & Partners

Room 1016

Beijing Silver Tower

No. 2 Dong San Huan North Road
Chao Yang District

Beijing 100027

the People’s Republic of China
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